
Lloyd White
Head of Democratic Services
London Borough of Hillingdon,
Phase II, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

Putting our residents first

North Planning 
Committee
Date: WEDNESDAY, 22 

JANUARY 2020

Time: 7.00 PM, OR UPON THE 
RISING OF THE MAJOR 
APPLICATIONS PLANNING 
COMMITTEE, WHICHEVER 
IS LATEST

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE

Meeting 
Details:

Members of the Public and 
Media are welcome to attend. 
This meeting may also be 
broadcast live.

To Councillors on the Committee

Councillor Edward Lavery (Chairman)
Councillor Duncan Flynn (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Jas Dhot
Councillor Martin Goddard
Councillor Becky Haggar
Councillor Henry Higgins
Councillor Carol Melvin BSc (Hons)
Councillor John Oswell
Councillor Raju Sansarpuri

Published: Tuesday, 14 January 2020

This Agenda is available online at:
www.hillingdon.gov.uk or use a smart phone 
camera and scan the code below:

Contact: Liz Penny
Tel: 01895 250185
Email: epenny@hillingdon.gov.uk
Please enter via main reception and visit 
the security desk to sign-in and collect a 
visitors pass. You will then be directed to 
the Committee Room.

Public Document Pack

http://www.hillingdon.gov.uk/
mailto:epenny@hillingdon.gov.uk


Useful information for 
residents and visitors
Watching & recording this meeting

You can watch the public part of this meeting on 
the Council's YouTube channel, live or archived 
after the meeting. Residents and the media are 
also welcome to attend in person, and if they 
wish, report on the public part of the meeting. 
Any individual or organisation may record or film 
proceedings as long as it does not disrupt 
proceedings. 

It is recommended to give advance notice of filming to ensure any particular requirements can be 
met. The Council will provide seating areas for residents/public, high speed WiFi access to all 
attending and an area for the media to report. The officer shown on the front of this agenda should 
be contacted for further information and will be available to assist.

When present in the room, silent mode should be enabled for all mobile devices.

Travel and parking

Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services. 

Please enter via main reception and visit the 
security desk to sign-in and collect a visitors 
pass. You will then be directed to the Committee 
Room.
Accessibility

For accessibility options regarding this agenda 
please contact Democratic Services.  For those 
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is 
available for use. 

Emergency procedures

If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous 
alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest 
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre 
forecourt. 

Lifts must not be used unless instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer. In the event of 
a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire Marshal or a Security 
Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their way to the signed refuge 
locations.



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committees

Petitions, Speaking and Councillors
Petitions – Those who have organised a petition of 20 or more people who live in the Borough, can speak at a 
Planning Committee in support of or against an application.  Petitions must be submitted in writing to the 
Council in advance of the meeting.  Where there is a petition opposing a planning application there is also the 
right for the applicant or their agent to address the meeting for up to 5 minutes. The Chairman may vary 
speaking rights if there are multiple petitions  
Ward Councillors – There is a right for local councillors to speak at Planning Committees about applications 
in their Ward. 
Committee Members – The planning committee is made up of the experienced Councillors who meet in 
public every three weeks to make decisions on applications. 

How the meeting works
The Planning Committees consider the more complex or controversial proposals for development and also 
enforcement action. 
Applications for smaller developments such as householder extensions are generally dealt with by the 
Council’s planning officers under delegated powers. 
An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which comprises reports on each application
Reports with petitions will normally be taken at the beginning of the meeting.  
The procedure will be as follows:- 

1. The Chairman will announce the report; 
2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a presentation of plans and photographs; 
3. If there is a petition(s),the petition organiser will speak, followed by the agent/applicant followed by any 

Ward Councillors;
4. The Committee may ask questions of the petition organiser or of the agent/applicant; 
5. The Committee discuss the item and may seek clarification from officers; 
6. The Committee will vote on the recommendation in the report, or on an alternative recommendation put 

forward by a Member of the Committee, which has been seconded.

How the Committee makes decisions
The Committee must make its decisions by having regard to legislation, policies laid down by National 
Government, by the Greater London Authority – under ‘The London Plan’ and Hillingdon’s own planning 
policies. The Committee must also make its decision based on material planning considerations and case law 
and material presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s report and any representations received. 
Guidance on how Members of the Committee must conduct themselves when dealing with planning matters 
and when making their decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s 
Constitution. 
When making their decision, the Committee cannot take into account issues which are not planning 
considerations such as the effect of a development upon the value of surrounding properties, nor the loss of a 
view (which in itself is not sufficient ground for refusal of permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to the 
design of the property.  When making a decision to refuse an application, the Committee will be asked to 
provide detailed reasons for refusal based on material planning considerations.  
If a decision is made to refuse an application, the applicant has the right of appeal against the decision.  A 
Planning Inspector appointed by the Government will then consider the appeal.  There is no third party right of 
appeal, although a third party can apply to the High Court for Judicial Review, which must be done within 3 
months of the date of the decision.



Agenda

Chairman's Announcements
1 Apologies for Absence

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting

3 To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting 1 - 4

4 Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent

5 To confirm that the items of business marked Part 1 will be considered 
in public and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private

PART I - Members, Public and Press

Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the 
Chairman may vary this.  The name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the 
address of the premises or land concerned.

Applications with a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Pages

6  7 Hedgeside Road, 
Northwood - 

38605/APP/2019/2718

Northwood Single storey outbuilding to be 
used as an outhouse.

Recommendation: Approval

5 - 16

88-93

7  Land to Rear of 18 
Moor Park Road, 
Northwood – 

74971/APP/2019/3169

Northwood The erection of a new pair of semi-
detached dwellings, together with 
the formation of two new vehicle 
crossovers onto Grove Road.

Recommendation: Refusal

17 – 32

94-100



8  17 Elgood Avenue, 
Northwood Hills – 

9106/APP/2019/1070

Northwood 
Hills

Part two storey, part single storey 
side/rear extension, raising of 
ridge height and conversion of roof 
space to habitable use to include a 
rear dormer, 4 side roof lights, 1 
front roof light and 1 rear roof light 
and creation of basement. 

Recommendation: Approval

33 – 50

101-107

Applications without a Petition

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page

9  73 Ryefield Crescent, 
Northwood Hills – 

70141/APP/2019/3098

Northwood 
Hills

External changes to fenestration to 
front and rear elevations.

Recommendation: Approval

51 – 62

108-116

PART II - Members Only

That the reports in Part 2 of this agenda be declared not for publication because they involve the 
disclosure of information in accordance with Section 100(A) and Part 1 of Schedule 12 (A) to the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended), in that they contain exempt information and that the public interest in 
withholding the information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it.

Address Ward Description & Recommendation Pages

10  ENFORCEMENT 
REPORT

ENFORCEMENT REPORT 63 - 72

11  ENFORCEMENT 
REPORT

ENFORCEMENT REPORT 73 - 86

PART I - Plans for North Planning Committee – pages 87 - 116



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes

NORTH Planning Committee

18 December 2019

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge

Committee Members Present: 
Councillors Duncan Flynn (Vice-Chairman), Jas Dhot, Becky Haggar, Henry Higgins, 
Carol Melvin, John Oswell, Alan Chapman, Jazz Dhillon and Steve Tuckwell

LBH Officers Present: 
Nicole Cameron (Legal Advisor), Matt Kolaszewski (Planning Team Manager), Anisha 
Teji (Democratic Services Officer), James Rodger (Head of Planning, Transportation 
and Regeneration) and Alan Tilly (Transport, Planning and Development Manager)

96.    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  (Agenda Item 1)

Apologies for absence received from Councillor Eddie Lavery with Councillor Steve 
Tuckwell substituting, Councillor Martin Goddard with Councillor Alan Chapman 
substituting and Councillor John Oswell with Councillor Jazz Dhillon substituting. 

97.    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING  
(Agenda Item 2)

There were no declarations of interest. 

98.    TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  (Agenda 
Item 3)

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting dated 20 November 2019 be 
approved as an accurate record. 

99.    MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT  (Agenda Item 
4)

None. 

100.    TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART 1 WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS MARKED PART 2 WILL BE 
CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE  (Agenda Item 5)

It was confirmed that the items of business marked Part I (items 1 – 9) would be 
considered in public and the item of business marked Part II (item 10) would be 
considered in private

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



101.    LAND R/O 40 DUCKS HILL RD, NORTHWOOD - 73183/APP/2019/868  (Agenda Item 
6)

Erection of 4-bed single storey dwelling with habitable basement with associated 
parking and amenity space and installation of crossover to Cygnet Close. 

Officers introduced the application, highlighted the addendum and made a 
recommendation for approval. 

A petitioner in objection of the application addressed the Committee and referred to 
documents that had been circulated to Members and the applicant/agent prior to the 
meeting. It was noted that the application was fundamentally different from the original 
application that was rejected. Concerns were raised about over dominance, impact on 
street view particularly in Cygnet Close, significant harm the development would cause 
to the road and impact on neighbouring properties. It was submitted that the property 
was incongruous, contrary to local space and character, would cause harmful effect on 
the garden and would be different to neighbouring properties. The development would 
bring no meaningful benefit to the area and Members were asked to visit the property 
in person to view the concerns raised. 

The agent for the application addressed the Committee and spoke in support of the 
application. It was noted that the application had been recommended for approval by 
officers and had been submitted nine months ago. The application had undergone a 
detailed analysis and changes following consultation with officers. It was noted that 
there were other properties in the area that were more visible. The applicant 
highlighted the conclusions in the officer’s report and asked the Committee to agree the 
application as per officer’s recommendation. 

Members considered that the design was clever, made the best use of land and was 
sympathetic to its local surroundings. It was noted that a single storey basement was a 
good way to use the space. Some concerns were raised about the safety of the layout 
of the property although it was noted that this was a matter for building control. 

Concerns were raised in relation to flooding and it was confirmed that the application 
had been considered by relevant officers and there were conditions proposed to 
address this. In relation to overlooking concerns, it was confirmed that this was not an 
issue as the height was already sufficiently low. It was further noted that some of the 
images in the petitioner’s documentation were not to scale. 

Delegated authority was requested to add an additional condition regarding 
construction management to ensure that construction vehicles accessing the property 
would be from Ducks Hill Close.

Members moved, seconded and unanimously agreed the officer’s recommendation.

RESOLVED: That the application be approved, subject to the changes in the 
addendum and delegated authority to the Head of Planning, Transportation and 
Regeneration to add an additional condition regarding construction 
management. 

102.    26 HIGH STREET, HAREFIELD - 14889/APP/2019/2583  (Agenda Item 7)

Page 2



Change of use from Use Class A1 (Shops) to a tattoo parlour (Sui Generis).

Officers introduced the application and made a recommendation for approval. 

The officer’s recommendation, was moved, seconded and unanimously agreed. 

RESOLVED: That the application be approved as per officer’s recommendation. 

103.    LAND OF THE REAR OF 229 AND 229A VICTORIA ROAD, RUISLIP - 
75052/APP/2019/2543  (Agenda Item 8)

Demolish existing garage and outbuildings, remove concrete hard standing and 
construct one new (1 bedroom) house with side garden space. 1 parking space 
for New house, 2 No Parking spaces for 229 Victoria Road, and 1 parking space 
for 229A Victoria Road. Separate bin store and separate cycle store for 2 bikes.

Officers introduced the application and made a recommendation for refusal. 

The officer’s recommendation, was moved, seconded and unanimously agreed. 

RESOLVED: That the application be refused as per officer’s recommendation. 

104.    NORTHWOOD HEALTH AND RACQUETS CLUB, DUCKS HILL ROAD, 
NORTHWOOD - 272/APP/2019/3001  (Agenda Item 9)

Variation of condition 2 (Approved Plans)of planning permission 
272/APP/2019/1164 dated 30/04/2019 to allow for minor amendments (Single 
storey rear extension, erection of an external spa garden to include 2 x one 
storey buildings for use as saunas and swimming pool with pool terrace).

Officers introduced the application and made a recommendation for approval. 

The officer’s recommendation, was moved, seconded and unanimously agreed. 

RESOLVED: That the application be approved as per officer’s recommendation. 

105.    ENFORCEMENT REPORT  (Agenda Item 10)

RESOLVED:

1. That the enforcement action, as recommended in the officer’s report, be 
agreed; and,

2. That the Committee resolved to release their decision and the reasons for 
it outlined in the report into the public domain, solely for the purpose of it 
issuing the formal breach of condition notice to the individual concerned.

This item is included in Part II as it contains information which a) is likely to reveal the 
identity of an individual, and b) contains information which reveals that the authority 
proposes to give, under an enactment, a notice under or by virtue of which 
requirements are imposed on a person. The authority believes that the public interest in 
withholding the Information outweighs the public interest in disclosing it (exempt 
information under paragraphs 2 and 6(a) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended).

Page 3



The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 7.38 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any of the 
resolutions please contact Anisha Teji on 01895 277655.  Circulation of these minutes 
is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

The public part of this meeting was filmed live on the Council's YouTube 
Channel to increase transparency in decision-making, however these minutes 
remain the official and definitive record of proceedings.

Page 4



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7 HEDGESIDE ROAD NORTHWOOD  

Single storey outbuilding to be used as an outhouse

14/08/2019

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 38605/APP/2019/2718

Drawing Nos: P102
P104 Rev. A
P203
P204 Rev. A
Photographs
Support Document

Date Plans Received: 10/10/2019Date(s) of Amendment(s):

The application relates to a two-storey detached period property located on the western
side of Hedgeside Road. The property is set beneath a hipped roof with work currently on-
going for the approved extensions. The property is elevated above the road with the
driveway to one side and a set of steps, centrally positioned leading to the front door. There
is also a good sized rear garden set at a higher level than the house. 

The street scene is residential in character and appearance comprising primarily large
detached properties. The application site lies within the 'Developed Area' as identified in the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012). It is also covered by
TPO 12.

This application seeks retrospective permission for the erection of a single storey
outbuilding.

38605/APP/2000/1577

38605/APP/2001/938

7 Hedgeside Road Northwood  

7 Hedgeside Road Northwood  

CONVERSION OF PART OF GARAGE TO A HABITABLE ROOM

REMOVAL OF CONDITIONS 5 (ADDITIONAL LANDSCAPING) AND 6 (CONSTRUCTION OF
ADDITIONAL PARKING SPACE) OF PLANNING PERMISSION REF.38605/APP/200/1577
DATED 28/11/00; CONVERSION OF GARAGE TO A HABITABLE ROOM

28-11-2000

13-07-2001

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Approved

Approved

1. CONSIDERATIONS  

1.3 Relevant Planning History  

1.1 Site and Locality  

1.2 Proposed Scheme  

14/08/2019Date Application Valid:

Appeal: 

Appeal: 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

There have been a number of previous applications for extensions to the property, with
approval being granted for a part two storey side extension, a single storey rear extension,
conversion of roofspace to habitable space, erection of open porch to front and part
conversion of garage in 2017. A revised application for this development has also been
received.

38605/APP/2004/2982

38605/APP/2017/2296

38605/APP/2017/554

38605/APP/2018/2335

38605/APP/2018/3552

38605/APP/2019/160

38605/APP/2019/2708

7 Hedgeside Road Northwood  

7 Hedgeside Road Northwood  

7 Hedgeside Road Northwood  

7 Hedgeside Road Northwood  

7 Hedgeside Road Northwood  

7 Hedgeside Road Northwood  

7 Hedgeside Road Northwood  

ERECTION OF SINGLE STOREY PART SIDE, PART REAR EXTENSION (INVOLVING
DEMOLITION OF EXISTING KITCHEN)

Part two storey side extension and a single storey rear extension, conversion of roofspace to
habitable space, erection of open porch to front, part conversion of garage including associated
alterations and landscaping to the front and rear (REVISED PLANS).

Part two storey, part single storey rear extension, conversion of roofspace to habitable use, porch
to front, part conversion of garage and alterations to front and rear landscaping.

Application for a non-material amendment to planning permission Ref: 38605/APP/2017/2296
dated 22/11/2017 (Part two storey side extension and a single storey rear extension, conversion
of roofspace to habitable space, erection of open porch to front, part conversion of garage
including associated alterations and landscaping to the front and rear) to allow for amendments on
front fenestration, rendering of walls and slate roof tiles

Part two storey side extension and a single storey rear extension, single storey front extension,
conversion of roofspace to habitable use, involving replacement roof, 2 front dormers and 2 rear
dormers, erection of open porch to front, part conversion of garage including associated
alterations and landscaping to the front and rear

Part two storey, part first floor side extension, single storey rear extension, conversion of
roofspace to habitable space to include 2 x rear dormers, erection of open porch to front, and part
conversion of garage involving alterations to front elevation.

Part two storey, part first floor side extension with additional front dormer, single storey rear
extension, conversion of roof space to habitable space to include 5 roof lights, erection of open
porch to front, and part conversion of garage involving alterations to front elevation

23-12-2004

15-11-2017

30-05-2017

20-07-2018

07-12-2018

27-03-2019

07-11-2019

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Approved

Approved

Refused

Refused

Refused

Withdrawn

Approved

Comment on Planning History  

Appeal: 

Appeal: 

Appeal: 

Appeal: 

Appeal: 

Appeal: 

Appeal: 

15-MAY-19 Dismissed

Page 6



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

Not applicable 

Advertisement and Site Notice2.

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6 neighbours and the Northwood Residents Association were consulted for a period of 21
days expiring on the 17 September 2019. A site notice was also erected, expiring on 26
September 2019. There were eight responses raising the following issues:

- The proposal exceeds the guideline in terms of height
- Unclear why the proposal is to raise the level to match the adjacent building
- The effect of the steps and platform is to provide a verandah which is against guidelines
- The overall impact is that the size, scale bulk and height will have an adverse impact on
neighbouring properties
- The new wall has been erected significantly closer to the trees in my garden (actually
touching) so they may have built on my ground
- Potential damage to trees and resultant loss of screening
- The back wall is clearly visible from my garden and is unsightly. It should be rendered like
the side wall
- Loss of privacy
- It has electricity and running water so could be used as a dwelling
- Out of keeping with the character of the original main house
- The main house has permission to be enlarged many times to provide more than
adequate accommodation for the occupants. A large outbuilding is not justified
- Increased noise
- Disproportionately large
- The veranda exceeds 30cm in height
- Exceeds permitted rights
- The actual house building does not seem to be adhering to the approved plans

A petition against the proposal was also received.

Officer response: Issues of land ownership are a civil matter between interested parties
and not a material planning consideration. The issue of the house is subject to a separate
application.

Trees/Landscaping Officer:

The site lies within the area covered by TPO 12, however, there are no protected trees at
this address. The site has been the subject of a series of applications in recent years. The
current application seeks to install a large single-storey outhouse, occupying the full width
of the site. The impact of the building on neighbouring properties will be significant due to
the rising land and elevated ground level on which the building will be located. Although a
reasonable area of rear garden will be retained, the location of the outhouse will exacerbate
the change of levels between the house and the rear boundary.

4.

3. Comments on Public Consultations

Page 7



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

AM14

BE13

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE23

BE24

BE38

DMHB 11

DMHD 2

HDAS-EXT

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new
planting and landscaping in development proposals.

Design of New Development

Outbuildings

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

Part 2 Policies:

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES 

The main issues for consideration in determining this application relate to the effect of the
proposal on the character and appearance of the original dwelling, the impact on the visual
amenities of the surrounding area, the impact on residential amenity of the neighbouring
dwellings and provision of acceptable residential amenity for the application property.

The NPPF notes the importance of achieving design which is appropriate to its context
stating that 'Permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails to take
the opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the way it
functions.'

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design.

Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
seeks to ensure that development harmonises with the character of the surrounding
properties and street scene. Policy BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved
UDP Policies (November 2012) further requires that development should complement and
improve the amenity of the residential area. 

Policy DMHB 11 of the emerging Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies with Modifications (March 2019) advises that all development will be
required to be designed to the highest standards and incorporate principles of good design.
It should take into account aspects including the scale of the development considering the

Page 8



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

height, mass and bulk of adjacent structures; building plot sizes and established street
patterns; building lines and streetscape rhythm and landscaping. It should also not
adversary impact on the amenity, daylight and sunlight of adjacent properties and open
space.

Policy DMHD 2 requires that outbuildings must be constructed to a high standard of design
without compromising the amenity of neighbouring occupiers. The developed footprint of
the proposed building must be proportionate to the footprint of the dwelling and its cartilage
and have regard to existing trees. The use shall be incidental to the enjoyment of the
dwelling and not capable of use as independent residential accommodation.  

Section 9.0 of the HDAS states that in order to prevent harm to the character and
appearance of the area and the amenity of adjoining properties, an outbuilding should be
positioned as far away from the main house as possible and set in from the boundaries by
at least 0.5 m. In terms of its design it should be constructed using materials similar to
those in the main house and any windows and doors should be positioned only on the
elevation facing the main house. An outbuilding with a flat roof should be no more than 3.0
m in height. The use of outbuilding should also be for normal domestic use related to the
residential use of the main house. 

The outbuilding is situated at the end of the rear garden and measures 7.75m in width
(8.78m including the canopy) and 4.295m in depth (5.75m including the canopy) with a flat
roof of 2.6m high. This is set upon a raised terrace of 14.7m wide and 6.3m in depth and a
maximum height of 0.58m. The terrace has levelled the ground on which the outbuilding
has been erected to the highest point at the rear of the garden and results in an overall
height of the building at 3.2m. This is a large timber clad outbuilding with patio doors facing
the garden and the floor plans indicate a small window on the southern end of the rear
elevation (although there is no corresponding elevation submitted). Although the floor plans
submitted show this would be one room, the provision of a small window in the corner
location would appear to suggest this area may be separate from the main room and
having regard to the photographs submitted from a neighbour showing the installation of
services to the building, it is likely that a toilet facility will be provided in this corner. It was
not possible to verify this at the time of the officer site visit as the building is currently in use
as storage for the main building project on the house. Notwithstanding this, the proposal is
a substantial building, which would exceed HDAS guidance in terms of height and this
would be exacerbated by the difference in land levels, with the building set approximately
2.36m higher than the host dwelling. It is also noted that as the land levels fall to the south,
with no. 5 set at a lower level. However it was noted at the officer site visit that the site is
enclosed with high hedges to either side and at the rear. As such the outbuilding it not
widely visible from the surrounding area. It is also set some distance from the rear of
surrounding properties (16.75m from the rear of No. 5, 21m from the rear of No.9 and 44m
from the rear of Hedgeside). Given these factors, it is, considered that the outbuilding does
not have a detrimental impact on the visual amenity of surrounding properties or the wider
street scene, such that a refusal could be justified. As such the proposal would comply
with the requirements of Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One -Strategic
Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
- Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policies DMHB 11 and DMHD 2 of the emerging
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies with Modifications
(March 2019)  and Section 9.0 of HDAS: Residential Extensions.

Policy BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
states that planning permission will not be granted for new development which by reason of

Page 9



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

HO2

NONSC

Accordance with approved

Non Standard Condition

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, number P204 Rev. A.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

The outbuilding hereby approved shall only be used for the purpose(s) stated on the
application form and approved drawings and shall not be used for purposes such as a
living room, bedroom, kitchen, as a separate unit of accommodation or for any business
purposes.

REASON
To avoid any future fragmentation of the curtilage or the creation of a separate residential
or business use, so as to protect the amenity of adjoining residential properties in
accordance with Policy BE13, BE15, BE19, BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012).

1

2

RECOMMENDATION 6.

its siting, bulk and proximity, would result in a significant loss in residential amenity.
Likewise Policies BE20 and BE24 resist any development which would have an adverse
impact upon the amenity of nearby residents and occupants through loss of daylight and
privacy. Although the building has been set at the end of the rear garden, the raised level of
the building allows views back towards the neighbouring properties, with the building more
consistent with the first floor bedroom windows. The nearest property at no. 5 would be
situated just 16.75m away but this is orientated slightly away from the application site and
set at a lower level. It is also noted that the high hedge along the side boundaries does
afford a level of screening, which would prevent direct views to the rear of that property.
There are views from the outbuilding towards the rear of no. 9 however this is set
approximately 21m away. It is also noted that there was previously a raised terrace on this
site and the plans indicate the finished levels for the terrace are the same. It is therefore it
is considered that the proposed development would not have an adverse impact upon the
amenity of nearby residents. As such the proposal complies with the requirements of
Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One -Strategic Policies (November 2012),
Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012), Policies DMHB 11 and DMHD 2 of the emerging Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies with Modifications (March 2019)
 and Section 9.0 of HDAS: Residential Extensions.
 .
Paragraph 3.13 of Residential Extensions. HDAS: Residential Extensions requires
sufficient garden space to be retained as a consequence of an extension. The property
benefits from a large garden and sufficient space would be retained.

There is no impact on parking provision as a result of this proposal.

Page 10



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

1

2

INFORMATIVES

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then
London Plan Policies (2016).  On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council
agreed the adoption of the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies.
Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the old Unitary
Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway
repairs, including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no
damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering
materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to the public
footway. Any damage will require to be made good to the satisfaction of the
Council and at the applicant's expense. 

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations,
Central Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

For Private Roads: Care should be taken during the building works hereby
approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge of footpaths on private roads
during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not
override or cause damage to a private road and where possible alternative routes
should be taken to avoid private roads. The applicant may be required to make
good any damage caused.

1           The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to 
             all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
             policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
             unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
             Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
             life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
             (prohibition of discrimination). 

Standard Informatives 

AM14 New development and car parking standards.

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

2 

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

Part 2 Policies:

Part 1 Policies:

Page 11



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

BE13

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE23

BE24

BE38

DMHB 11

DMHD 2

HDAS-EXT

New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision
of new planting and landscaping in development proposals.

Design of New Development

Outbuildings

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

3          You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the
            approved drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must
            be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any 
            deviation from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local 
            Planning Authority.

4          You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
            by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning
            application will have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a
            development that results in any form of encroachment.

5          Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the
            Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover
            such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building
            or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings,
            installation of services, underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape
            works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must be given to the
            Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
            completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for
            approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and
            advice, contact - Planning, Enviroment and Community Services, Building Control,
            3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

6          You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension. 

Page 12



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

            When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your
            neighbours and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at 
            any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all
            vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved 
            are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the
            adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers to
            control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air
            Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and advice, please
            contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street,
            Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

7          The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal
            agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
             - carry out work to an existing party wall;
             - build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
             - in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining
               building.
            Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building
            owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. 
            The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any
            necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by 
            the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for the building owner to
            comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found
            in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM,
            available free of charge from the Planning, Enviroment and Community Services
            Reception, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8          Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
            property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission 
            does not empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the 
            specific consent of the owner. If you require further information or advice, you
            should consult a solicitor.

9          Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
            Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
            particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with: -

            A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the
            hours of 08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours 
            of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
            Sundays Bank and Public Holidays.

            B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with
            British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

            C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public 
            health nuisance.

            D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

            You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02,

Page 13



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Liz Arnold 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

            Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek 
            prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate 
            any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working
            hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to
            adjoining premises.

10        You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
            approved to avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the
            pavement or public highway. You are further advised that failure to take 
            appropriate steps to avoid spillage or adequately clear it away could result in 
            action being taken under the Highways Act.

11        To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction
            methods, you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy
            resources which do not produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions,
            including solar, geothermal and fuel cell systems, and use of high quality
            insulation.

12        You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
            approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during
            construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override
            or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made 
            good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. For further
            information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central 
            Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
            Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Page 14



22

Glenwood

33

17

86.6m

2

KEWFERRY DRIVE25

Downside

Claremont

81.7m

Croft Ham

12

El Sub Sta

16

Cetlas

Albuhera

Highgate

High Meadow

Glencairn Endymion

FARM ROAD

HE
DG

ES
ID

E R
OA

D

16

´

January 2020

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.
Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

7 Hedgeside Road

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:
1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

38605/APP/2019/2718
© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

LAND TO REAR OF 18 MOOR PARK ROAD NORTHWOOD 

The erection of a new pair of semi-detached dwellings, together with the
formation of two new vehicle crossovers onto Grove Road

25/09/2019

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 74971/APP/2019/3169

Drawing Nos: 1319/P/1
Design Statement
1319/P/3
1319/P/4
1319/P/5
1319/P/2

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The application seeks permission for the erection of a pair of semi detached houses, with
associated parking and amenity space.

The proposed dwellings are of a design and form that would be out of keeping with the
historic character of the area and would result in a cramped form of development and an
unacceptable intensification of the existing site to the detriment of the character and
appearance of the wider street scene. The proposal also fails to provide adequate parking
provision or amenity space and fails to make adequate provision for the retention and long
term protection of off site trees. 

It is therefore recommended for refusal.

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

NON2

NON2

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by reason of its siting and layout would result in a
development of the site, which would fail to harmonise with the existing local and historic
context of the surrounding area. The principle of intensifying the residential use of the site
as proposed, as well as the proposed loss of existing private rear garden area would have
a detrimental impact on the street scene and character and appearance of the area as a
whole. The proposal is therefore detrimental to the visual amenity and character of the
surrounding area and contrary to Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One -
Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policy DMHB 11 of the emerging
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies with Modifications
(March 2019), Policies 3.5, 7.1 and 7.4 of the London Plan (2016), guidance within The
London Plan Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (March 2016), the NPPF and to
the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

1

2

2. RECOMMENDATION 

03/10/2019Date Application Valid:

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NON2

NON2

NON2

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development, by reason of its siting, size, scale, bulk and design, including
the crown roof form, gettied gables, tile hung and exposed brickwork would be a stark
contrast to the predominant rendered appearance of the dwellings along Grove Road and
would fail to harmonise with the character and architectural composition of surrounding
properties, appearing as an awkward, incongruous and cramped form of development
which would be detrimental to the visual amenity of the street scene and harmful to the
character and appearance of the surrounding area, contrary to Policy BE1 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012) and Policies BE13
and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012),
Policies DMHB 11 and DMHB 12 of the emerging Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Development Management Policies with Modifications (March 2019) and to the Council's
adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

The proposal has not demonstrated that sufficient off street parking/manoeuvring
arrangements would be provided, and therefore the development is considered to result in
substandard car parking provision, leading to on-street parking/queuing to the detriment of
public and highway safety and contrary to Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012), Policies
DMT 2 and DMT 6 of the emerging Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies with Modifications (March 2019), to Hillingdon's Adopted Parking
Standards as set out in the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document
HDAS: Residential Layouts.

In the absence of a Tree Survey and Arboricultural Implication Assessment to
BS5837:2012 standards, the application has failed to demonstrate that the development
will safeguard existing trees on/adjoining the site and further fails to demonstrate
protection for and long-term retention of the trees. The proposal is therefore detrimental to
the visual amenity of the street scene and the wider area contrary to Policies BE19 and
BE38 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012),
Policy DMHB 14 of the emerging Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies with Modifications (March 2019) and the adopted Supplementary
Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

The proposed development, by virtue of its failure to provide amenity space of sufficient
size and quality commensurate to the size and layout of the proposed units would result in
an over-development of the site detrimental to the residential amenity of existing and future
occupiers. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE19 and BE23 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012), Policy
DMHB 18 of the emerging Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies with Modifications (March 2019) and the adopted Supplementary Planning
Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

3

4

5

I59 Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies1

INFORMATIVES

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils

Page 18



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I71 LBH worked applicant in a positive & proactive (Refusing)2

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises part of the rear garden of 18 Moor Park Road. The site is
located on the eastern side of Grove Road and is bordered to the north by 2 Grove Road
and to the east by the rear garden of 16 Moor Park Road. As existing, the house is located
in a large mature garden plot, with a number of trees along the side and rear boundaries
and is enclosed along Grove Road by a tall wooden fence. The principal elevation of the
existing house fronts Moor Park Road to the south. 

The street scene is predominantly residential in character and appearance and comprises
large two storey detached dwellings predominantly set within spacious plots. The only
exception within the immediate street scene is 1a Grove Road, which is opposite the site.
This property is set within an infill plot that was formerly part of the rear garden of no. 24
Moor Park Road. The original development of this plot for a bungalow occurred in the
1960's. In 2017 approval was granted for the redevelopment of the site to form a two
storey, 5 bed dwelling. The architectural style of the area has a pleasant uniformity of
render, brickwork and deep hipped roof forms.

The application site lies within the 'Developed Area' as identified in the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012).

None.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

This application seeks permission for the erection of a new pair of semi-detached
dwellings, together with the formation of two new vehicle crossovers onto Grove Road.

Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We
have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies from the 'Saved'
UDP 2007, Local Plan Part 1, Supplementary Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and
other informal written guidance, as well as offering a full pre-application advice service.

74971/PRC/2019/156 Land To Rear Of 18 Moor Park Road Northwood 

Erection of pair of semi-detached dwellings together with the formation of two new vehicular
crossovers onto Grove Road

08-11-2019Decision: OBJ

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 19



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

4. Planning Policies and Standards

The Local Plan Part 2 Draft Proposed Submission Version (2015) was submitted to the
Secretary of State on 18th May 2018. This comprises  a Development Management
Policies document, a Site Allocations and Designations document and associated policies
maps. This will replace the current Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (2012) once
adopted.

The document was submitted alongside Statements of Proposed Main and Minor
Modifications (SOPM) which outline the proposed changes to submission version (2015)
that are being considered as part of the examination process. 

Submission to the Secretary of State on 18th May 2018 represented the start of the
Examination in Public (EiP). The public examination hearings concluded on the 9th August
2018. The Inspector submitted a Post Hearing Advice Note outlining the need to undertake
a final consultation on the updated SOPM (2019) only. The Council undertook this
consultation between 27th March 2019 and 8th May 2019. All consultation responses have
been provided to the Inspector for review, before the Inspector's Final Report is published
to conclude the EiP process.

Paragraph 48 of the NPPF (2019) outlines that local planning authorities may give weight to
relevant policies in emerging plans according to: 

a) The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its preparation, the
greater the weight that may be given); 
b) The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and 
c) The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to this
Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the Framework,
the greater the weight that may be given).

On the basis that the public hearings have concluded and the Council is awaiting the final
Inspector's Report on the emerging Local Plan: Part 2, the document is considered to be in
the latter stages of the preparation process. The degree to which weight may be attached
to each policy is therefore based on the extent to which there is an unresolved objection
being determined through the EiP process and the degree of consistency to the relevant
policies in the NPPF (2019).

PT1.BE1

PT1.H1

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Housing Growth

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

AM2

AM7

AM14

BE13

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Part 2 Policies:

Page 20



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE38

H12

H4

OE1

OE3

DMH 6

DMHB 11

DMHB 12

DMHB 14

DMHB 18

DMT 6

HDAS-LAY

LDF-AH

LPP 3.3

LPP 3.4

LPP 3.5

LPP 3.8

LPP 6.13

LPP 6.3

LPP 6.9

LPP 7.4

NPPF- 2

NPPF- 5

NPPF- 11

NPPF- 12

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Tandem development of backland in residential areas

Mix of housing units

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

Garden and Backland Development

Design of New Development

Streets and Public Realm

Trees and Landscaping

Private Outdoor Amenity Space

Vehicle Parking

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

(2016) Increasing housing supply

(2015) Optimising housing potential

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

(2016) Housing Choice

(2016) Parking

(2016) Assessing effects of development on transport capacity

(2016) Cycling

(2016) Local character

NPPF-2 2018 - Achieving sustainable development

NPPF-5 2018 - Delivering a sufficient supply of homes

NPPF-11 2018 - Making effective use of land

NPPF-12 2018 - Achieving well-designed places

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

Page 21



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

6. Consultations

Internal Consultees

Conservation and Urban Design Officer: 

The proposed development would be considered in principle unacceptable. It would fail to relate to
the established local distinctiveness of the road and surrounding area. 

The area is suburban in character with detached houses set on ample sized plots. The properties
within the area are predominantly date from the 1920s/30s and whilst if individual appearance they

External Consultees

7 neighbours and the Northwood Residents Association were consulted for a period of 21 days
expiring on the 28 October 2019. A site notice was also erected to the front of the proposed
development, expiring on the 6 November 2019. There were 10 responses and a petition, raising the
following issues:

- The accommodation is completely different to the prevailing character of the area. There are no
semi detached properties in the road.
- The rooms are cramped and set at the minimum legal requirements compared to the surrounding
large spacious properties set within large well established gardens
- Loss of the existing garden area, which contains well established trees, shrubs, flower beds and
lawns
- Potential impact on trees in adjacent garden, leading to either pressure to prune or fell or
inadequate light to proposed property
- Potential loss of neighbouring tree due to close proximity and root damage
- Additional noise and odour
- Prevailing character of the area is for large detached properties. The application says that there are
in the wider area terraced and semi detached properties. This is incorrect. The only small properties
are in Mezan Close, which is a self enclosed close set back behind Moor Park Road and not widely
visible
- The application is incorrect calling it a 3 bed development as the roof space provides a fourth
bedroom
- Amenity space too small
- The porches to the front come beyond the building line
- The two garages would not be able to accommodate anything but a very small car, leading to on
road parking to the detriment of highway safety
- The large Oak Tree has already been felled and there is no indications of a future replacement
- The proposed design is not intrusive and generally in keeping with the character of the area. I think
it is a question of LBH policy rather than individual applications in this area
- Contrary to adopted policy regarding garden development
- Object to the two new crossovers, which will cause more traffic
- The proposed development would constitute a piecemeal form of backland development that would
fail to maintain the open and verdant character and appearance of the surrounding area
- No details of drainage
- Loss of privacy
- Lack of wider consultation. 
- Overdevelopment

Officer Comment: Public consultation was undertaken with all surrounding properties and a site
notice erected.

Ward Councillor: This is garden grab, which is totally out of character with the quiet suburban street.

Page 22



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

have been designed in a similar manner and style. 

Whilst the site is located to the rear of no. 18 Moor Park Road it is situated along Grove Road. The
section off Moor Park Road comprises of properties located along the western side of Grove Road
only. The western street scene is defined by close boarded fence line enclosing the rear gardens of
no. 18 Moor Park Road and no. 2 Grove Road. The houses along this stretch of road are defined by
their painted rendered exterior and hipped pitched roof form. Their spacious plots and ample
frontages relate to the suburban aesthetic of the surrounding are and original intent in which this part
of Northwood had been developed in. The properties are comfortably positioned within their
respective plots with ample gaps between the built forms maintaining a sense of rhythm along the
road as well as providing a sense of openness to the street scene. Front boundary treatments
appropriately compose of dwarf brick walls accompanied by mature hedges. This alongside street
trees and grass verges along the pavements contribute positively to the green, verdant appearance
of the street scene. 

The proposed pair of semi detached properties would be defined as suburban infill and
intensification, and would be considered in principle unacceptable. The separation of part of the
garden of no. 18 would fail to follow the historic grain of development of the surrounding area. In
comparison to neighbouring sites, the site area associated to the proposed properties is significantly
smaller with limited rear gardens, minimal frontages and small gaps between the sites side
boundaries. The proposal would result in a cramped form of development and an unacceptable
intensification of the existing site.

There is a distinct lack of buildings facing Grove Road on the eastern side and the introduction of the
proposed buildings would disrupt the existing open, verdant character of the road. The development
would appear as an isolated form along the eastern side, detrimentally altering the appearance of the
street scene. Furthermore it would establish an unwelcome precedent within this area, which would
erode its well defined character and appearance.

The proposal would introduce a different building typology within an area characterised by large
detached houses. The proposed semi-detached pair would be an incongruous addition to the area.
Furthermore the appearance of the building with its gettied gables, tile hung and exposed brickwork
would be a stark contrast to the predominant rendered appearance of the dwellings along Grove
Road. The design of the dwellings better relates to other parts of Northwood. The crown roof is not
an original roof form within the area and would also result in a bulky roof which would not be
considered ideal. 

The proposed development would be considered an incongruous addition within the area which
would fail to relate to the established local distinctiveness.

Trees/Landscaping Officer:

This site is occupied by the end of the rear garden of a two-storey detached house located on a
corner plot, at the junction with Grove Road. The area is characterised by detached houses in mixed
styles with spacious well-established gardens. This corner plot is exceptionally spacious.

No access was gained into the site but views from Grove Road confirm that there are off-site trees
in the gardens of 16 Moor Park Road and 2 Grove Road which oversail the site boundary. Although
not protected by TPO or Conservation Area designation these trees are highly visible and make a
valuable contribution to the character, appearance and wider environmental quality of the area.

COMMENT: No tree report has been submitted, however, the trees are very close to the proposed
footprint of the building and are likely to influence / be influenced by the building. Even if the house
could be built without damaging the adjacent trees, the proximity of the trees to the building will be

Page 23



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

Paragraph 7.29 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012) suggests that backland development may be acceptable in principle subject to being
in accordance with all other policies, although Policy H12 does resist proposals for
tandem/backland development which may cause undue disturbance or loss of privacy.

The London Plan (2016) provides guidance on how applications for development on garden
land should be treated within the London Region. The thrust of the guidance is that back
gardens can contribute to the objectives of a significant number of London Plan policies
and these matters should be taken into account when considering the principle of such
developments. Policy 3.5 of the London Plan supports development plan-led presumptions
against development on back gardens where locally justified by a sound local evidence
base.

The Mayor's Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance, also provides further guidance on
the interpretation of existing policies within the London Plan as regards garden
development. Paragraph 1.2.44 advises that when considering proposals which involve the
loss of gardens, regard should be taken of the degree to which gardens contribute to
defining local context and character (Policy 7.4 and 3.5), especially in outer London where
gardens are often a key component of an area's character (Policies 2.6). The contribution
gardens make towards biodiversity also needs to be considered (Policies 7.19 and 7.21)
as does their role in mitigating flood risk (Policies 5.12 and 5.13). 

The NPPF (July 2018) at paragraph 70, advises that LPAs 'should consider the case for
setting out policies to resist inappropriate development of residential gardens, for example
where development would cause harm to the local area.'

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic policies states that a high
quality design should be achieved in all new buildings, alterations and extensions, and
states that schemes should not result in the inappropriate development of gardens and
green spaces that erode the character and biodiversity of suburban areas.

The Councils HDAS 'Residential Layouts' states that backland development involves
similar issues to the redevelopment of large plots and infill sites. This type of development
must seek to enhance the local character of the area and the plot should be of a sufficient
depth to accommodate new housing in a way that provides a quality residential
environment for new and existing residents. 

unsustainable. If the trees are retained they are likely to be oppressive due to the loss of light to the
new property, or cause a nuisance through their proximity to the building, which would create
pressure to remove them in the future.

RECOMMENDATION: In the absence of a tree report to BS5837:2012, the applicant has failed to
demonstrate that the off-site trees will be unaffected by the development and has not made provision
for their long term protection. The application fails to satisfy saved policy BE38 and should be
refused.

Access Officer:

Any grant of planning permission should include the following condition: The dwelling(s) would be
required to be constructed to meet the standards for a Category 2 M4(2) dwelling, as set out in
Approved Document M to the Building Regulations (2010).

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 24



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Emerging Policy DMH6: Garden and Backland Development advises there is a
presumption against the loss of gardens due to the need to maintain local character,
amenity space and biodiversity. In exceptional cases a limited scale of backland
development may be acceptable, subject to the following criteria:
i) Neighbouring residential amenity and privacy of existing homes and gardens must be
maintained
ii) Vehicular access or car parking should not have an adverse impact on neighbours in
terms of noise or light
iii) Development on backland sites must be more intimate in mass and scale; and
iv) Features such as trees, shrubs and wildlife habitat must be retained or re-provided

The property is located within the 'developed area' as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), however, London Plan policy 3.5
recognises the contribution of gardens (especially back gardens) and suggests a
presumption against their loss where it can be locally justified. Emerging local plan policy
DMH 6 gives a presumption against the loss of gardens due to the need to maintain local
character, amenity space and biodiversity. Only in exceptional cases will backland
development be acceptable. The Inspector's final report on the emerging local plan was
received on 22nd October and has been found to be sound subject to modifications not
relevant to this application. It is to be progressed to adoption via Cabinet in December 2019
and Full Council on January 16th 2020, so the weight to be afforded to this policy is
significant. 

The proposal involves development of a garden site in a residential area characterised by
family housing with large undeveloped rear gardens being a prevailing characteristic and
the issues relating to its siting and impact on character and thus the principle of
development are discussed below, suffice to say that the proposal constitutes an
unacceptable form of garden development. The loss of what is a residential rear garden
and the impact of the proposed dwelling on the immediate locality is considered to be
detrimental to the character and appearance of the surrounding street scene. The infilling
of the gap, which at present provides an important break in the built form would appear out
of character with the pattern, scale and form of development within the surrounding area.
The proposal is thus unacceptable in principle.

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (2015) seeks to ensure that the new development takes into
account local context and character, the design principles in Chapter 7 and public transport
capacity development should optimise housing output for different types of location within
the relative density range shown in Table 3.2. Development proposals which compromise
this policy should be resisted.

The density matrix, however, is only of limited value when looking at small scale
development such as that proposed with this application. In such cases, it is often more
appropriate to consider how the development harmonises with its surroundings and its
impact on adjoining occupiers.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Page 25



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
states that all new developments should achieve a high quality of design in all new
buildings and the public realm contributes to community cohesion and a sense of place. 

Policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Par two - Saved UDP Policies
(November 2012) resist any development which would fail to harmonise with the existing
street scene or would fail to safeguard the design of the existing and adjoining sites.

Policy DMHB 11 of the emerging Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies with Modifications (March 2019) advises that all development will be
required to be designed to the highest standards and incorporate principles of good design.
It should take into account aspects including the scale of the development considering the
height, mass and bulk of adjacent structures; building plot sizes and established street
patterns; building lines and streetscape rhythm and landscaping. It should also not
adversary impact on the amenity, daylight and sunlight of adjacent properties and open
space.

The main body of the proposed building measuring 16.3m in width and 9m in depth set
beneath a hipped roof of between 9.275m and 8.75m in height. To the front this includes a
10.7m wide two storey element with a small gable feature to either side and two small
dormer windows between. There is a single storey element at the same depth either side
forming part of an integral garage and a front canopy of 1.25m in depth over the centrally
positioned front doors. To the rear is a further flat roofed 'extension' spanning the width of
the building at a depth of 3m. The proposed building is set back 1m from both side
boundaries and a minimum of 6m from the pavement to the front. The submitted street
scene indicates the scale of the building would be generally consistent with others within
the area; however the Conservation Officer has raised strong objections to the proposal. 

In consideration of the form of development, it fails to follow the historic grain of the
surrounding area. The houses along this stretch of road are defined by their painted
rendered exterior and hipped pitched roof form. Their spacious plots and ample frontages
relate to the suburban aesthetic of the surrounding are and original intent in which this part
of Northwood had been developed in. The properties are comfortably positioned within their
respective plots with ample gaps between the built forms maintaining a sense of rhythm
along the road as well as providing a sense of openness to the street scene. In comparison
to neighbouring sites, the site area associated to the proposed properties is significantly
smaller with limited rear gardens, minimal frontages and small gaps between the sites side
boundaries, which would result in a cramped form of development and an unacceptable
intensification of the existing site. The eastern side of Grove Rod is defined by close
boarded fence line enclosing the rear gardens of no. 18 Moor Park Road and no. 2 Grove
Road. The introduction of the proposed buildings would disrupt the existing open, verdant
character of the road. The development would appear as an isolated form along the
eastern side, detrimentally altering the appearance of the street scene. Furthermore it
would establish an unwelcome precedent within this area, which would erode its well
defined character and appearance.

The proposal would introduce a different building typology within an area characterised by
large detached houses. The proposed semi-detached pair would be an incongruous
addition to the area. Furthermore the appearance of the building with its gettied gables, tile
hung and exposed brickwork would be a stark contrast to the predominant rendered
appearance of the dwellings along Grove Road. The design of the dwellings better relates
to other parts of Northwood. The crown roof is not an original roof form within the area and

Page 26



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08

7.09

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

would further exacerbate the incongruous appearance of the proposed dwellings. 

As such it is considered that the proposed development would be considered an
incongruous addition within the area, which would fail to relate to the established local
distinctiveness and would be out of keeping with the character and appearance of the
streetscene. Therefore the proposal fails to comply with the requirements of Policies BE13,
BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November
2012), Policy DMHB 11 of the emerging Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies with Modifications (March 2019) and HDAS: Residential Layouts.

Policy OE1, OE3 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) require the
design of new developments to protect the amenity and privacy of neighbouring dwellings.
Also the proposed development should not breach the 45 degree guideline when taken
from the rear elevation of the neighbouring dwelling, ensuring no significant loss of light,
loss of outlook of sense of dominance in accordance with Policy BE20 and BE21 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

The Council's HDAS 'Residential Layouts' advises at paragraph 4.9 that buildings should
avoid being over dominant from neighbouring properties and normally a minimum 15m
separation distance should be maintained between habitable room windows and elevations
of two or more storeys (taken from a 45 degree splay from the centre of habitable room
windows). Paragraph 4.12 of the guidance also advises that where habitable room
windows face each other, a minimum 21m distance is required to safeguard privacy. This
also applies to an area of private amenity space or patio, normally taken to be the 3m depth
of rear garden immediately adjoining the rear elevation of a residential property. 

The proposed site plan identifies that the proposed dwellings would be situated between
no. 18 Moor Park Road and 2 Grove Road, with the blank flank walls set back a minimum
of 21.3m and 41.9m respectively. It is therefore considered that there is sufficient
separation to prevent any significant impact on the neighbouring properties be virtue of over
dominance, loss of light or loss of outlook, in compliance with adopted policy and guidance.

To the rear the properties would afford views over the end of the rear gardens of the
neighbouring properties. To the north the properties along Grove Road are set some
distance away, with a span at 21m within a 45 degree line of site a minimum of 55m away.
Given the degree of separation it is not considered there would be a significant loss of
privacy to the occupants of those dwellings. To the south the nearest property at no. 16
Mood Park Road would be situated approximately 22.3m away at the nearest point, with a
separation of approximately 34m on a 45 degree line of sight to their private patio area to
the rear of the property. It is therefore considered that given the degree of separation the
proposal would not result in a significant loss of privacy on the private garden area to the
rear of that property. 

It is therefore considered that the proposal would not significantly impact of the amenity of
the adjoining neighbours by reason of significant loss of light, loss of outlook, sense of
dominance or loss of privacy  in accordance with Policy BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012).

On 25 March 2015, the Government introduced new technical housing standards in
England, which comprise of new additional 'optional' Building Regulations on water and
access, and a nationally described space standard (referred to as "the new national
technical standards"). These new standards came into effect on 1 October 2015. The

Page 27



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.10 Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Mayor of London has adopted the new national technical standards through a minor
alteration to The London Plan. 

The Housing Standards (Minor Alterations to the London Plan) March 2016 sets out the
minimum internal floor spaces required for developments in order to ensure that there is an
adequate level of amenity for existing and future occupants. The proposal as presented
would suggest 3 bed properties, however it is noted that the size of the 'office' within the
roof space would be sufficient to be utilised as a fourth bedroom and as such the proposal
is assessed on that basis. A 4 bed, 6 person property over 3 floors would require a floor
area of minimum of 112sqm. The proposed floor area of approximately 167sqm would
exceed this requirement.

It is considered that all the proposed habitable rooms, would have an adequate outlook and
source of natural light, and therefore comply with the SPD: New Residential Layouts:
Section 4.9.

Policy DMHB 18 of the emerging Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies with Modifications (March 2019) advises all new residential
development will be required to provide good quality and useable private outdoor amenity
space. For a 4 bed property a minimum provision of 100sqm would be required. The
proposal includes private amenity space of approximately 70sqm for each dwelling, which
would be below the required standard. The proposal would therefore fail to comply with the
requirements of Policy DMHB 18 of the emerging Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two -
Development Management Policies with Modifications (March 2019).

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policy requires the Council to
consider whether the traffic generated by proposed developments is acceptable in terms of
the local highway and junction capacity, traffic flows and conditions of general highway or
pedestrian safety.

The proposal would clearly increase traffic generation from what is a dormant site.
However, statistically, peak period traffic movement into and out of the site would not be
expected to rise beyond 1-2 two-way vehicle movements during the peak morning and
evening hours. This potential uplift is considered marginal in generation terms and
therefore can be absorbed within the local road network without notable detriment to traffic
congestion and road safety.

Policy AM14 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two- Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
requires developments to comply with the Council's Car Parking Standards, although this
policy predates the National Planning Policy Framework. This requires the establishment of
criteria to be considered when setting local parking standards including the accessibility of
the development and the availability of and opportunities for public transport. The site has a
poor PTAL rating and would require the provision of 2 car parking spaces plus 2 cycle
spaces per unit. 

DMT 6 of the emerging Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management
Policies with Modifications (March 2019) advises development proposals must comply with
the parking standards outlined in Appendix C Table 1 in order to facilitate sustainable
development and address issues relating to congestion and amenity. The site has a poor
PTAL rating and would require the provision of 2 car parking spaces plus 2 cycle spaces
per unit. 

Page 28



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

The proposal does include 2 spaces in the form of the garage and an additional frontage
space. However it is noted that the garage at a width of 2.4m would be significantly below a
standard garage parking space of 3m and as such would be unlikely to be used for its
intended purpose. As such the proposal would fail to provide adequate parking provision in
line with adopted policy. The proposal therefore fails to comply with policy AM14 of the
Development Plan (2012) and Policy DMT 6 of the emerging Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Development Management Policies with Modifications (March 2019).

These issues are covered in other sections of the report.

The Access Officer has advised that any grant of planning permission should include a
condition requiring compliance with Category 2 M4(2) dwelling, as set out in Approved
Document M to the Building Regulations (2010).

Not applicable to this application.

This site is occupied by the end of the rear garden of a two-storey detached house located
on a corner plot, at the junction with Grove Road.

There are off-site trees in the gardens of 16 Moor Park Road and 2 Grove Road which
oversail the site boundary. Although not protected by TPO or Conservation Area
designation these trees are highly visible and make a valuable contribution to the character,
appearance and wider environmental quality of the area.

No tree report has been submitted and the trees are very close to the proposed footprint of
the building and are likely to influence/be influenced by the building. Even if the house could
be built without damaging the adjacent trees, the proximity of the trees to the building will be
unsustainable. If the trees are retained they are likely to be oppressive due to the loss of
light to the new property, or cause a nuisance through their proximity to the building, which
would create pressure to remove them in the future.

In the absence of a tree report to BS5837:2012, the applicant has failed to demonstrate that
the off-site trees will be unaffected by the development and has not made provision for their
long term protection. The application fails to satisfy Policies BE19 and BE38 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012), Policy DMHB 14
of the emerging Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies with
Modifications (March 2019) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Residential Layouts.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Disruption due to development is transitory in nature and insufficient reason to refuse a
proposal in its own right. All other issues raised are noted and addressed appropriately in

Page 29



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.20

7.21

7.22

Planning Obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

the main body of the report.

The Council adopted its own Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on August 1st 2014 and
the Hillingdon CIL charge for additional floorspace for residential developments is £95 per
square metre and office developments of £35 per square metre. This is in addition to the
Mayoral CIL charge of £35 per sq metre.

Not applicable to this application.

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.
 
Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned. 
 
Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.
 
Planning Conditions
Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.
 
Planning Obligations
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).
 
Equalities and Human Rights
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

Page 30



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed dwellings are of a design and form that would be out of keeping with the
historic character of the area and would result in a cramped form of development and an
unacceptable intensification of the existing site to the detriment of the character and
appearance of the wider street scene. The proposal also fails to provide adequate parking
provision or amenity space and fails to make adequate provision for the retention and long
term protection of off site trees. The development is therefore considered contrary to a
suite of Hillingdon Local Plan policies (2012) and policies in the London Plan 2016 and is
recommended for refusal.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies with Modifications
(March 2019)
The London Plan (2016)
The Housing Standards Minor Alterations to The London Plan (March 2016)
Mayor of London's adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance - Housing (March 2016)
Technical Housing Standards - Nationally Described Space Standard
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Layouts
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon
National Planning Policy Framework

Liz Arnold 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 31



3

MEZEN CLOSE

1

34

13

EER, Boro Const, GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

28

12 9

1

24

9

2

2

8

18

1

7a
9a

7

GROVE ROAD
1a

MOOR PARK ROAD

23

18

7

13
14

19

19

10

´

January 2020

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.
Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

Land to Rear of 18 Moor Park Road

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:
1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

74971/APP/2019/3169
© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 32



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

17 ELGOOD AVENUE NORTHWOOD  

Part two storey, part single storey side/rear extension, raising of ridge height
and conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear dormer, 4 side
roof lights, 1 front roof light and 1 rear roof light and creation of basement

29/03/2019

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 9106/APP/2019/1070

Drawing Nos: 201.116-11 Rev. R
201.116-13 Rev. O
201.116-03 Rev. B
201.116-01
201.116-05 Rev. C
Surface Water Drainage Strategy and Flood Risk Assessment

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

The application site is located on the Gate Hill Farm Estate in Northwood, which is
designated as an Area of Special Local Character. The character of the estate consists of
large, individually designed, detached houses on large plots. The area is very well
vegetated and trees are protected by Tree Protection Orders.

The existing house is a bay-fronted detached house with white rendered walls and a clay
tiled hipped roof. To the rear there is an existing single storey extension and a small area of
patio. 

The house stands back from the road, allowing space for 3 cars to park at the front. The
rear garden is of a good size and mainly laid to lawn with a number of trees. 

This is part of the established 'developed area' as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part
2 - Saved Policies (November 2012).

Part two storey, part single storey side/rear extension, raising of ridge height and
conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear dormer, 4 side roof lights, 1 front
roof light and 1 rear roof light and creation of basement.

The  proposed  development  is  for  the  demolition  of  the  existing  extension  to  the  rear
 of  the building and construction of a larger extension to rear and side of the building to
both the ground and first; construction of a basement; extension of the patio area to the
rear of the building for access to the basement and amenity. The total increase in
impermeable site area pre-to post development is approximately 8sq.m from the patio's
extension. The new building extension is approximately 65sq.m and entirely built over

1. CONSIDERATIONS  

1.1 Site and Locality  

1.2 Proposed Scheme  

05/04/2019Date Application Valid:

Page 33

Agenda Item 8



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

On 11th July 2017 reference 9106/APP/2017/1604 was refused for three reasons:

1. The proposed part two storey, part single storey rear extension, by reason of its overall
size, scale and bulk would fail to harmonise with the architectural composition of the
original dwelling and would be detrimental to the character, appearance and visual

existing impermeable area.

A flooding/SUDS report accompanying the application recommends that:

'The drainage strategy proposed uses Filter Drains (gravel trench) as the main SuDS
component to attenuate surface water. Preliminary calculations indicate that approximately
4.7 m³ of storage will be required to attenuate runoff from the 1:100 year +40% climate
change storm event. The storage requirement could be provided in a filter drain/gravel
trench located at the rear of the site, beneath the proposed patio and adjacent vegetation.
The indicated trench layout is 16.8m2, 1m deep structure providing 5m3 of storage (built
with gravel with minimum 30% porosity). The filter drain should be provided with a
geotextiles (on the  outward facing side only) to allow for infiltration. 

Discharges from the filter drain should be controlled by a 20mm diameter orifice plate. In
the current configuration the orifice plate is placed at 0.75m above the base of the filter
drain in order to avoid discharges off-site during the 1 in 1 year rainfall event +CC and
infiltrate the respective runoff. During the 1 in 100 year event + CC the outfall rate would be
0.3 l/s.

It is recommended to  consider the use of  pump/gravity-based Rainwater Harvesting
Systems as per London Plan Policy 5.13. The design to be provided by a specialist in
these bespoke systems.'

9106/APP/2017/1604

9106/APP/2018/2818

9106/B/82/0589

9106/PRC/2018/91

17 Elgood Avenue Northwood  

17 Elgood Avenue Northwood  

17 Elgood Avenue Northwood  

17 Elgood Avenue Northwood  

Part two storey, part single storey side/rear extension and conversion of roofspace to habitable
use to include 1 front dormer, 1 rear dormer and 4 side rooflights

Part two storey, part single storey side/rear extension, raising of ridge height and conversion of
roof space to habitable use to include a rear dormer, 4 side roof lights, 1 front roof light and 1 rear
roof light

Householder development - residential extension(P)

2 versions (1.1 and 2.1) both variants of part side/part rear extension

11-07-2017

01-11-2018

30-06-1982

11-07-2018

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Refused

Approved

Approved

OBJ

1.3 Relevant Planning History  

Comment on Planning History  

Appeal: 

Appeal: 

Appeal: 

Appeal: 

Page 34



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

amenities of the Gatehill Farm Estate, Northwood Area of Special Local Character.
Therefore the proposal would be contrary to Policies BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE5, BE13, BE15 and BE19
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential
Extensions.

2. The proposed front dormer window, by reason of its position, size, scale, bulk, and
design would fail to harmonise with the architectural composition of the original dwelling
and would be detrimental to the character, appearance and visual amenities of the street
scene and the wider Gatehill Farm Estate, Northwood, Area of Special Local Character.
Therefore the proposal would be contrary to Policies BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012), Policies BE5, BE13, BE15 and BE19
of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(November 2012) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential
Extensions.

3. The proposed rear dormer window, by reason of its size, scale, bulk, and design would
fail to harmonise with the architectural composition of the original dwelling and would be
detrimental to the character, appearance and visual amenities of the wider Gatehill Farm
Estate, Northwood, Area of Special Local Character. Therefore the proposal would be
contrary to Policies BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies
(November 2012), Policies BE5, BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (November 2012) and the adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Extensions.

9106/APP/2018/2818 -  Part two storey, part single storey side/rear extension, raising of
ridge height and conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear dormer, 4 side
roof lights, 1 front roof light and 1 rear roof light  (Approved)

Not applicable 

Advertisement and Site Notice2.

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

Neighbours were notified on 09/04/2019 and a site notice was displayed on 11/04/2019. By
the end of the consultation period there was one objection received raising the following
issues:

(1) There is no assessment of whether the basement and subterranean scheme impacts
on drainage, flooding from all sources, groundwater conditions, and structural stability
relating to adjoining properties.

In addition a petition and letter was received from the Gatehill Residents Association which
is comprehensive in its comments but which states , in summary- 

(1) The application should be refused because it does not comply with most of the
Council's basement policies 
(2) The width goes beyond the full width of the property 

3. Comments on Public Consultations

Page 35



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

(3) Large lightwells are proposed to the side of the property
(4) No professional reports have been obtained or used regarding the structural integrity of
the property nor the drainage, flooding or groundwater impacts on the natural environment,
neighbouring properties or local amenity

Flood and Water Management: Although a basement is proposed, it does not extend the
full width of the site boundary, and allows space for groundwater to move around the site
without increasing risk to the surrounding properties, it is therefore not reasonable to object
in principle to a proposed basement as there is potential for suitable mitigation to be
employed. 

A surface water and flood risk assessment has been prepared by Ambiental Environmental
'Surface Water Drainage Strategy and Flood Risk Assessment', although this provides
further clarification that SUDS methods could be effectively implemented on site, a
condition is still required to ensure the final development is acceptable.
The following condition is therefore requested: 

Prior to commencement, (excluding demolition and site clearance) a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management shall be submitted to, and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate how it incorporates
sustainable urban drainage (SuDs) in accordance with the hierarchy set out in Policy 5.13
of the London Plan and will: i. provide information on all SuDs features including the
method employed to delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and: ii.
provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. Including
appropriate details of Inspection regimes, appropriate performance specification. The
scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable water
through water collection, reuse and recycling and will: iii. provide details of water collection
facilities to capture excess rainwater; and how water usage will be reduced in the
development. Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in
accordance with these details for as long as the development remains in existence. 

REASON To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development
does not increase the risk of flooding contrary to: Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (Nov 2012), Policy DMEI 10 Water
Management, Efficiency and Quality in emerging Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Development
Management Policies, Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of the London Plan (March
2016) and To be handled as close to its source as possible in compliance with Policy 5.13
Sustainable Drainage of the London Plan (March 2016), and Conserve water supplies in
accordance with Policy 5.15 Water use and supplies of the London Plan (March 2016).
National Planning Policy Framework (July 2018), and the Planning Practice Guidance
(Flood Risk and Coastal Change March 2014).

Trees and Landscape - no objection subject to standard Tree protection conditions.

4.

Page 36



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.HE1 (2012) Heritage

DMHB 1

DMHB 5

DMHB 6

DMHB 11

DMHD 1

DMHD 3

DMEI 10

DMEI 11

BE5

BE6

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

AM14

HDAS-EXT

LPP 3.5

Heritage Assets

Areas of Special Local Character

Gatehill Farm Estate and Copse Wood Estate Areas of Special Local
Character

Design of New Development

Alterations and Extensions to Residential Dwellings

Basement Development

Water Management, Efficiency and Quality

Protection of Ground Water Resources

New development within areas of special local character

New development within Gate Hill Farm and Copsewood Estates areas of
special local character

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

New development and car parking standards.

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

Part 2 Policies:

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES 

The main considerations are the design and impact on the character of the existing
property, the impact upon the street scene and locality, the impact upon the amenities of
adjoining occupiers, the reduction in size of the rear garden and car parking provision.

The Revised Proposed Submission Local Plan Part 2 (LPP2) documents (Development
Management Policies, Site Allocations and Designations and Policies Map Atlas of
Changes) were submitted to the Secretary of State for examination in May 2018. 

The public examination hearing sessions took place over one week in August 2018.

Page 37



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Following the public hearing sessions, the examining Inspector advised the Council in a
Post Hearing Advice Note sent in November 2018 that he considers the LPP2 to be a plan
that could be found sound subject to a number of main modifications.

The main modifications proposed by the Inspector were agreed by the Leader of the
Council and the Cabinet Member for Planning, Transport and Recycling in March 2019 and
are published for public consultation from 27 March to 8 May 2019.

Regarding the weight which should be attributed to the emerging LPP2, paragraph 48 of
the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2019 states that 'Local Planning
Authorities may give weight to relevant policies in emerging plans according to:

(a) the stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its preparation, the
greater the weight that may be given);

(b) the extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and

(c) the degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to this
Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the Framework,
the greater the weight that may be given).

With regard to (a) above, the preparation of the LPP2 is now at a very advanced stage. The
public hearing element of the examination process has been concluded and the examining
Inspector has indicated that there are no fundamental issues with the LPP2 that would
make it incapable of being found sound subject to the main modifications referred to above.

With regard to (b) above, those policies which are not subject to any proposed main
modifications are considered to have had any objections resolved and can be afforded
considerable weight. Policies that are subject to main modifications proposed by the
Inspector will be given less than considerable weight. The weight to be attributed to those
individual policies shall be considered on a case by case basis considering the particular
main modification required by the Inspector and the material considerations of the
particular planning application, which shall be reflected in the report, as required.

With regard to (c) it is noted that the Inspector has indicated that subject to main
modifications the LPP2 is fundamentally sound and therefore consistent with the relevant
policies in the NPPF.
 
Notwithstanding the above, the starting point for determining planning applications remains
the adopted policies in the Local Plan: Part 1 Strategic Policies and the Local Plan: Part 2
Saved UDP Policies 2012.and suitable weight is also given to LPP2 which is expected to
be adopted in January 2020. 

Policy DMHB 11 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies With
Modifications (March 2019) states that A) All development, including extensions, alterations
and new buildings will be required to be designed to the highest quality standards and,
incorporate principles of good design including: i) harmonising with the local context by
taking into account the surrounding scale of development, considering the height, mass
and bulk of adjacent structures; building plot sizes and widths, plot coverage and
established street patterns; building lines and setbacks, rooflines, streetscape rhythm, for
example, gaps between structures and other streetscape elements, such as degree of

Page 38



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

enclosure; architectural composition and quality of detailing; local topography, views both
from and to the site; and impact on neighbouring open spaces and their environment. ii)
ensuring the use of high quality building materials and finishes; iii) ensuring that the internal
design and layout of development maximises sustainability and is adaptable to different
activities; iv) protecting features of positive value within and adjacent to the site, including
the safeguarding of heritage assets, designated and un-designated, and their settings; and
v) landscaping and tree planting to protect and enhance amenity, biodiversity and green
infrastructure. B) Development proposals should not adversely impact on the amenity,
daylight and sunlight of adjacent properties and open space. C) Development will be
required to ensure that the design safeguards the satisfactory re-development of any
adjoining sites which have development potential. In the case of proposals for major
development sites, the Council will expect developers to prepare master plans and design
codes and to agree these with the Council before developing detailed designs. D)
Development proposals should make sufficient provision for well designed internal and
external storage space for general, recycling and organic waste, with suitable access for
collection. External bins should be located and screened to avoid nuisance and adverse
visual impacts to occupiers and neighbours.

Policy DMHB 5: Areas of Special Local Character states:
"A) Within Areas of Special Local Character, new development should reflect the character
of the area and its original layout.  Alterations should respect the established scale, building
lines, height, design and materials of the area. B) Extensions to dwellings should be
subservient to, and respect the architectural style of the original buildings and allow
sufficient space for appropriate landscaping, particularly between, and in front of, buildings.
C) The replacement of buildings which positively contribute to the character and local
importance of Areas of Special Local Character will normally be resisted. "

Policy DMHB 6: Gatehill Farm Estate and Copse Wood Estate Areas of Special Local
Character states - 
 
"Within the Gatehill Farm and Copse Wood Estates, new houses should: i) be constructed
on building plots of a similar average width as surrounding residential development; ii) be
constructed on a similar building line (formed by the front main walls of existing houses)
and be of a similar scale, form and proportion as adjacent houses and reflect the materials,
traditional roof design, design features and architectural style predominant in the area; iii)
ensure that boundary treatment is unobtrusive and of the natural materials appropriate to
the character and appearance of the estate; iv) ensure that new dwellings retain an
absolute minimum of 1.5m distance to side boundaries; v) preserve the mature trees
including boundary planting to reinforce existing landscaping and Estate settings; "

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design and the public realm contributes to community cohesion
and a sense of place.

Policy BE13 states that development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fail
to harmonise with the existing street scene or other features in the area which the Local
Planning Authority considers it desirable to retain or enhance. Policy BE15 states that
proposals for alterations and extensions to existing buildings will be permitted where they
harmonise with the scale, form, architectural composition and proportions of the original
building.

Page 39



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The Council's Adopted SPD the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential
Extensions (December 2008) or HDAS, contains design guidance for all types of
extensions which should appear subordinate in scale to the original building.

Paragraph 4.9 of the HDAS: Residential Layouts advises that all residential developments
and amenity spaces should receive adequate daylight and sunlight and that new
development should be designed to minimise the negative impact of overbearing and
overshadowing. Impacts on daylight and sunlight are measured using the 45 degree rule,
which assesses whether the extension would be in the line of vision from the nearest
habitable room window on the neighbouring property. The submitted plans show that the
single storey element of the rear extension would break the 45 degree line in relation to the
window of No.15, but there is a substantial intervening hedge, so the impact would not be
unacceptable. There would be no impact on No.19.

Due to the spacious nature of the plot it is not anticipated that the development would
cause an overbearing impact on any of the neighbouring properties.

The side extension facing No.15 would include a first floor window serving the stairwell. As
this is not a habitable room it could be conditioned to be obscure glazed and non-opening.
As part of the works, a first floor side bedroom window would be enlarged and re-sited on
the original side elevation facing No. 19. However, as this is an existing relationship and
there is a large hedge between the two properties, there would be no significant loss of
privacy.

Therefore, in terms of the impact on neighbours, the proposed development would be
consistent with Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24, which seek to ensure that the amenity of
neighbouring properties is not adversely affected by new development. It is also consistent
with the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential Extensions.

Policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
requires all new development to maintain the quality of the built environment including
providing high quality urban design. Furthermore Policies BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) resist any development
which would fail to harmonise with the existing street scene or would fail to safeguard the
design of existing and adjoining sites. 

The site is located within the Gate Hill Farm Estate Area of Special Local Character
(ASLC). Policies relating to built heritage are set out in Chapter 12 of the National Planning
Policy Framework (2012), Policy 7.8 of the London Plan and Policies BE5 and BE6 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan Part Two (saved policies). Policies aim to ensure that the value of
heritage assets within the ASLC are protected from inappropriate development.

Policies BE5 and BE6 seek to ensure new development is of a similar scale and reflects
the materials, design features, architectural style and building heights predominant in the
area. BE6 relates specifically to the Gate Hill Farm Estate. The proposed development
would significantly alter the front elevation of the house by raising the overall ridge height of
the house and adding a side extension (including the roof). The previously refused proposal
included a front dormer. This has now been removed and the scheme is considered to
comply with policies BE5 and BE6. 

There is a small light well to the rear and two small light wells to the side of the property.
There are no front lightwells and the proposed lightwells to the side/rear would not be

Page 40



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

visible from public viewpoints and are not considered to have any adverse impact on the
character or appearance of the streetscene.

The proposals include increasing the number of bedrooms from 3 to 5, so there could be
an increase in cars parking on the site. There are, however, 3 parking spaces to the front
which meets the requirements of the Car Parking Standards for a 5-bedroom house.

The proposed rear single storey element of the extension would extend 5 m from the rear
of the original house. This would conflict with guidance in paragraph 3.4 of HDAS, which
limits single storey rear extensions to 4 m deep. This element of the proposal has been
reduced from 6m. In pre-application advice, it was considered that, due to the staggered
building line and different levels from its neighbours, that this element was acceptable. It is
considered, on balance, that no harm will result.

The proposed two storey element of the extension would extend 4 m from the rear of the
property and therefore complies with paragraph 6.4 of HDAS. The proposed rear dormer
has been reduced from that refused previously and is now considered to form a
subordinate addition.

The proposed side extension complies with guidance in chapter 5 of HDAS in that the roof
ridge is set down, it is set back from the main frontage, and it is more than 1 m from the
side boundary.

It is considered that the development  would be not detrimental to the character and
appearance of the area and complies with policies BE1 and HE1 of the Hillingdon Local
Plan: Part One Policies, BE5, BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan Part Two
(saved policies), Policy 3.5 of the London Plan,, Policies DMHB 11; DMHB 5; DMHB 6
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies With Modifications
(March 2019) and guidance contained in HDAS.

Proposed basement 

Local Plan Part 2 Policy DMHD 3: Basement Development states:
 
A) When determining proposals for basement and other underground development, the
Council require an assessment of the scheme's impact on drainage, flooding, groundwater
conditions and structural stability. The Council will only permit basement and other
underground development that does not cause harm to the built and natural environment
and local amenity and does not result in flooding or ground instability. Developers will be
required to demonstrate by methodologies appropriate to the site that their proposals: i)
avoid adversely affecting drainage and run-off or causing other damage to the water
environment; ii) avoid cumulative impacts upon structural stability or the water environment
in the local area; 
 
B) Schemes should ensure that they: i) do not harm the amenity of neighbours; ii) do not
lead to the loss of trees of townscape or amenity value; iii) do provide satisfactory
landscaping, including adequate soil depth; iv) do not harm the appearance or setting of the
property or the established character of the surrounding area, for example through the
introduction of front lightwells; and v) do protect important archaeological remains. 
 
C) The Council will not permit basement schemes which include habitable rooms and
other sensitive uses in areas prone to flooding. D) The Council will not permit basement

Page 41



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

HO1

HO2

HO4

Time Limit

Accordance with approved

Materials

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 201.116-11 Rev. R
and 201.116-13 Rev. O.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building and shall thereafter be
retained as such.

REASON
To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed

1

2

3

RECOMMENDATION 6.

schemes in Listed Buildings and will not permit them in Conservation Area locations where
their introduction would harm the special architectural or historic character of the area.  

The total increase in impermeable site area pre-to post development is approximately
8sq.m from the patio extension.  The new building extension is approximately 65sq.m and
entirely built over existing impermeable area. In this case although a basement is
proposed, it does not extend the full width of the site boundary, and allows space for
groundwater to move around the site without increasing risk to the surrounding properties,
it is therefore not reasonable to object in principle to a proposed basement as there is
potential for suitable mitigation to be employed. In light of the detailed Flood and Water
Management comments it is recommended that detailed matters relating to the impacts of
the basement to ensure acceptable impacts on groundwater/SUDS can be dealt with by
conditions and are acceptable with regard to Policy  DMHD 3:of Hillingdon Local Plan: Part
Two - Development Management Policies With Modifications (March 2019).

No significant impacts on trees are anticipated.

The property has a large rear garden and after the  development is completed in excess of
100 square metres private amenity space will be retained. The development therefore
accords with Policy B23.

For the above reasons it is recommended that the application is approved.

Page 42



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

HO5

RES8

RES10

No additional windows or doors

Tree Protection

Tree to be retained

development does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing building
in accordance with Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012)

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any order revoking and re-enacting that
Order with or without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall
be constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved facing 15
or 19 Elgood Avenue.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (2012)

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such fencing should be a minimum
height of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. 
The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.
The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:
2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;
2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;
2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.
2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.
2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP Policies (2012)

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan(s) shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the Local
Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged
during (or after) construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying, another tree,
hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would

4

5

6

Page 43



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a
position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a size
and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in
the first planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of
the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a schedule of
remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or
groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority. New planting
should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and
Shrubs.' Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON
To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and to comply with Section 197 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990.

Prior to commencement, (excluding demolition and site clearance) a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management shall be submitted to, and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall clearly demonstrate how it incorporates
sustainable urban drainage (SuDs) in accordance with the hierarchy set out in Policy 5.13
of the London Plan and will: i. provide information on all SuDs features including the
method employed to delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and: ii.
provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development of
arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime. Including
appropriate details of Inspection regimes, appropriate performance specification. The
scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable water
through water collection, reuse and recycling and will: iii. provide details of water collection
facilities to capture excess rainwater; and how water usage will be reduced in the
development. Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained
in accordance with these details for as long as the development remains in existence. 

REASON To ensure that surface water run off is controlled to ensure the development
does not increase the risk of flooding contrary to: Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic Policies (Nov 2012), Policy DMEI 10 Water
Management, Efficiency and Quality in emerging Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2
Development Management Policies, Policy 5.12 Flood Risk Management of the London
Plan (March 2016) and To be handled as close to its source as possible in compliance
with Policy 5.13 Sustainable Drainage of the London Plan (March 2016), and Conserve
water supplies in accordance with Policy 5.15 Water use and supplies of the London Plan
(March 2016). National Planning Policy Framework (July 2018), and the Planning Practice
Guidance (Flood Risk and Coastal Change March 2014).

The development shall  be undertaken in accordance with those details, set out in the
report prepared by Ambiental Environmental 'Surface Water Drainage Strategy and Flood
Risk Assessment'  and the approved scheme shall be implemented prior to the first use of
the development hereby permitted and retained for the duration of the development. 

7

8

Page 44



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

REASON: 
The proposal could increase flood risk and is therefore not in accordance with accordance
with Policy EM6 Flood Risk Management in Hillingdon Local Plan: Part 1- Strategic
Policies (Nov 2012), Policy DMHD 3: Basement Development in emerging Hillingdon Local
Plan Part 2 Development Management Policies, 5.12 Flood Risk Management of the
London Plan (March 2016) and National Planning Policy Framework (July 2018), and the
Planning Practice Guidance (Flood Risk and Coastal Change March 2014). All
developments in this area contribute to manage the risk from surface water, and reduce
the run off from their site.

1

2

3

INFORMATIVES

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic
Policies appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then
London Plan Policies (2016). On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council
agreed the adoption of the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies.
Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies from the old Unitary
Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of State in
September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway
repairs, including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no
damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering
materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to the public
footway. Any damage will require to be made good to the satisfaction of the
Council and at the applicant's expense. 

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations,
Central Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

In dealing with the application the Council has implemented the requirement in the
National Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and
proactive way. We have made available detailed advice in the form of our
statutory policies from the 'Saved' UDP 2007, Local Plan Part 1, Supplementary
Planning Documents, Planning Briefs and other informal written guidance, as well
as offering a full pre-application advice service, in order to ensure that the
applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an application which is likely
to be considered favourably.

1           The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to 
             all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
             policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
             unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
             Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
             life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
             (prohibition of discrimination). 

Standard Informatives 

Page 45



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

DMHB 1

DMHB 5

DMHB 6

DMHB 11

DMHD 1

DMHD 3

DMEI 10

DMEI 11

BE5

BE6

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

AM14

HDAS-EXT

LPP 3.5

Heritage Assets

Areas of Special Local Character

Gatehill Farm Estate and Copse Wood Estate Areas of Special
Local Character

Design of New Development

Alterations and Extensions to Residential Dwellings

Basement Development

Water Management, Efficiency and Quality

Protection of Ground Water Resources

New development within areas of special local character

New development within Gate Hill Farm and Copsewood Estates
areas of special local character

New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

New development and car parking standards.

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

(2016) Quality and design of housing developments

3          You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the
            approved drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out
below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material
considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national guidance.

2 

PT1.BE1

PT1.HE1

(2012) Built Environment

(2012) Heritage

Part 2 Policies:

Part 1 Policies:

Page 46



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

            be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any 
            deviation from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local 
            Planning Authority.

4          You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
            by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning
            application will have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a
            development that results in any form of encroachment.

5          Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the
            Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover
            such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building
            or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings,
            installation of services, underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape
            works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must be given to the
            Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
            completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for
            approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and
            advice, contact - Planning, Enviroment and Community Services, Building Control,
            3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

6          You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension. 
            When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your
            neighbours and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at 
            any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all
            vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved 
            are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the
            adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers to
            control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air
            Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and advice, please
            contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street,
            Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

7          The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal
            agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
             - carry out work to an existing party wall;
             - build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
             - in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining
               building.
            Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building
            owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. 
            The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any
            necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by 
            the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for the building owner to
            comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found
            in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM,
            available free of charge from the Planning, Enviroment and Community Services
            Reception, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8          Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
            property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission 

Page 47



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Cris Lancaster 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

            does not empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the 
            specific consent of the owner. If you require further information or advice, you
            should consult a solicitor.

9          Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
            Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
            particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with: -

            A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the
            hours of 08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours 
            of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
            Sundays Bank and Public Holidays.

            B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with
            British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

            C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public 
            health nuisance.

            D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

            You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02,
            Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek 
            prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate 
            any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working
            hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to
            adjoining premises.

10        You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
            approved to avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the
            pavement or public highway. You are further advised that failure to take 
            appropriate steps to avoid spillage or adequately clear it away could result in 
            action being taken under the Highways Act.

11        To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction
            methods, you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy
            resources which do not produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions,
            including solar, geothermal and fuel cell systems, and use of high quality
            insulation.

12        You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
            approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during
            construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override
            or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made 
            good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. For further
            information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central 
            Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
            Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Page 48



Monmouth

1 to 6
15

12

13

1

6

37

1a
FF

27

35

1a

10

27

2

44

33

18

14

EL
GO

OD

23

RAVENSWOOD PARK

37

13

31

16

8

14b

14

12

48

33

40

19

34

20

RAVENSWOOD PARK

33

19

El Sub Sta

14
a

29

15

29

17

43

27a

21

AV
EN

UE

38

30

The Dormers

96.6m

38

26
Turret

28

GA
TE

HIL
L R

OA
D

49

Pool

89.0m

The

´

January 2020

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.
Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

17 Elgood Avenue 

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:
1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

9106/APP/2019/1070
© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

73 RYEFIELD CRESCENT NORTHWOOD  

External changes to fenestration to front and rear elevations

18/09/2019

Report of the Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration 

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 70141/APP/2019/3098

Drawing Nos: Design and Access Statement
130 Rev. P1
131 Rev. P1
141 Rev. P2
132 Rev. P3
133 Rev. P1
142 Rev. P2
143 Rev. P2

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The proposal seeks planning permission for alterations to the front and rear fenestration,
including enlarging a window, replacing a window with a door; replacing a shutter with a
window and enlarging two windows on the north elevation and two new windows,
replacing a shutter with 2 doors, replacing a door with a window and adding an additional
window on the south elevation.

The proposed alterations to the facade would have an acceptable impact on the
appearance of the building and the visual amenities of the surrounding area and is
recommended for approval.

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

COM3

COM4

Time Limit

Accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans, numbers 141 Rev. P2, 142
Rev. P2 and 143 Rev. P2, and shall thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the
development remains in existence.
 
REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two
Saved UDP Policies (November 2012) and the London Plan (2016).

1

2

2. RECOMMENDATION 

18/09/2019Date Application Valid:

Page 51

Agenda Item 9



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

HO4 Materials

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building and shall thereafter be
retained as such.

REASON
To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed
development does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing building
in accordance with Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two Saved UDP
Policies (November 2012) and Policy DMHB 11 of the emerging Hillingdon Local Plan:
Part Two - Development Management Policies with Modifications (March 2019).

3

I52

I53

I59

I47

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

Councils Local Plan : Part 1 - Strategic Policies

Damage to Verge - For Council Roads:

1

2

3

4

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies
and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) as incorporated into the Hillingdon Local Plan (2012) set out below, including
Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations, including
The London Plan - The Spatial Development Strategy for London consolidated with
alterations since 2011 (2016) and national guidance.

On this decision notice policies from the Councils Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies
appear first, then relevant saved policies (referred to as policies from the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan - Saved Policies September 2007), then London Plan Policies (2016).
On the 8th November 2012 Hillingdon's Full Council agreed the adoption of the Councils
Local Plan: Part 1 - Strategic Policies. Appendix 5 of this explains which saved policies
from the old Unitary Development (which was subject to a direction from Secretary of
State in September 2007 agreeing that the policies were 'saved') still apply for
development control decisions.

The Council will recover from the applicant the cost of highway and footway repairs,

AM14
BE13
BE15
BE19

BE24

OE1

DMHB 11

New development and car parking standards.
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Design of New Development

Page 52



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I15 Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work5

3.1 Site and Locality

The proposed site comprises a single storey flat roof building that is within a courtyard to
the rear of properties nos 83-91 Joel Street and rear of Grace Court. The site is located to
the north of Tolcarne Drive, the south of Ryefield Crescent and Joel Street is to the west of
the building. Properties fronting Joel Street are very tall and back onto the application site.
They have rear windows which serve flatted accommodation. Grace Court also has rear
windows which face the proposed development. There is vehicular access to the site from
Tolcarne Drive and Ryefield Crescent. The existing building is surrounded by hard

including damage to grass verges.

Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to ensure no damage
occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this
development shall not override or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will
require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. 

For further information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central
Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3
3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

For Private Roads: Care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
ensure no damage occurs to the verge of footpaths on private roads during construction.
Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to a
private road and where possible alternative routes should be taken to avoid private roads.
The applicant may be required to make good any damage caused.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between
the hours of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out construction
other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 53



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

landscaping, although there are existing trees along the eastern boundary in the rear
garden of 1/3 Tolcarne Drive. Ryefield Crescent to the north is characterised by
commercial units with some of the commercial units accommodating residential units
above. Tolcarne Drive is residential in character and is characterised by semi-detached
flatted properties.

The site is within the boundary of Northwood Hills Town Centre and Secondary Shopping
Area, and the Developed Area as identified in the Hillingdon Local Plan Part 2 Saved
Policies (November 2012).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application is for alterations to the front and rear fenestration. These include enlarging
a window, replacing a window with a door; replacing a shutter with a window and enlarging
two windows on the north elevation and two new windows, replacing a shutter with 2 doors,
replacing a door with a window and adding an additional window on the south elevation.

70141/APP/2014/2469

70141/APP/2015/3093

70141/APP/2015/962

70141/APP/2016/651

70141/APP/2018/1715

73 Ryefield Crescent Northwood  

73 Ryefield Crescent Northwood  

73 Ryefield Crescent Northwood  

73 Ryefield Crescent Northwood  

73 Ryefield Crescent Northwood  

Change of use from business/storage and distribution (Use Class B1/B8), erection of first and
second floors and side extension to allow the provision of 6 x 1-bed self contained flats involving
alterations to elevations

Change of use from business/storage and distribution (Use Class B1/B8) to Use Class C3
(Dwelling Houses), demolition of existing single storey building and erection of a two storey
building attached to existing flats to create 2 x 1-bed and 1 x 2-bed self contained flats
associated parking and amenity space involving alterations to fenestration of existing flat No.5

Change of use from business/storage and distribution (Use Class B1/B8), demolition of existing
single storey building and erection of a two storey building with habitable roofspace to include 6 
1-bed self contained flats with associated parking and amenity space (Resubmission)

Change of use of building from retail (Use Class A1) to 3 residential units (Use Class C3) and
associated alterations to the elevations (Prior approval)

Alterations to front and rear fenestration

22-09-2014

20-10-2015

19-05-2015

22-04-2016

Decision: 

Decision: 

Decision: 

Decision: 

Refused

Refused

Withdrawn

Refused

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Page 54



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

There have been two previous submissions for extensions and change of use to
residential, which were refused on a number of issues including the scale; over
development of the site; detrimental impact on the amenities of the adjacent properties;
poor amenity and access for future occupants and parking provision. 

More recently a prior approval for the change of use of the existing single storey building
from storage to residential was approved and there was a subsequent application for
alterations to the front and rear elevations that was approved in June 2018.

Officer Comment: There has been correspondence regarding whether the warehouse
(application site) was once parking for residents in Grace Court. This was dealt with fully
as part of the prior approval application where various statutory declarations and
information was submitted regarding the use of the building for warehousing going back to
2005. This information addressed all planning matters relating to the warehouse, in so far
as this process proved beyond reasonable doubt that any historical use of the building for
parking by residents of Grace Court had ceased a long time ago and that over time the
warehouse use had become the 'planning use' of the premises. It should be pointed out
that this relates purely to planning considerations (restrictive covenants are a private
property matter).

4. Planning Policies and Standards

The Local Plan Part 2 Draft Proposed Submission Version (2015) was submitted to the
Secretary of State on 18th May 2018. This comprises  a Development Management
Policies document, a Site Allocations and Designations document and associated policies
maps. This will replace the current Local Plan: Part 2 - Saved UDP Policies (2012) once
adopted.

The document was submitted alongside Statements of Proposed Main and Minor
Modifications (SOPM) which outline the proposed changes to submission version (2015)
that are being considered as part of the examination process. 

Submission to the Secretary of State on 18th May 2018 represented the start of the

70141/APP/2018/1975

70141/APP/2018/248

73 Ryefield Crescent Northwood  

73 Ryefield Crescent Northwood  

Details pursuant to condition 2 (Sound Insulation) of planning permission Ref:
70141/APP/2018/248 dated 21-03-2018 (Change of use from B8 (storage and distribution) to C3
residential (2 units)

Change of use from B8 (storage and distribution) to C3 residential (2 units) (Prior Approval)

29-06-2018

23-07-2018

21-03-2018

Decision: 

Decision: 

Decision: 

Approved

Approved

Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 55



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Examination in Public (EiP). The public examination hearings concluded on the 9th August
2018. The Inspector submitted a Post Hearing Advice Note outlining the need to undertake
a final consultation on the updated SOPM (2019) only. The Council undertook this
consultation between 27th March 2019 and 8th May 2019. All consultation responses have
been provided to the Inspector for review, before the Inspector's Final Report is published
to conclude the EiP process.

Paragraph 48 of the NPPF (2019) outlines that local planning authorities may give weight to
relevant policies in emerging plans according to: 

a) The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced its preparation, the
greater the weight that may be given); 
b) The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and 
c) The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to this
Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to the policies in the Framework,
the greater the weight that may be given).

On the basis that the public hearings have concluded and the Council is awaiting the final
Inspector's Report on the emerging Local Plan: Part 2, the document is considered to be in
the latter stages of the preparation process. The degree to which weight may be attached
to each policy is therefore based on the extent to which there is an unresolved objection
being determined through the EiP process and the degree of consistency to the relevant
policies in the NPPF (2019).

PT1.BE1 (2012) Built Environment

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

AM14

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE24

OE1

DMHB 11

New development and car parking standards.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Design of New Development

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

32 neighbours and the Northwood Hills Residents Association were consulted for a period of 21

Page 56



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The proposal involves minor alterations to an existing building and thus there is no in
principle objection.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

The Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One Strategic Policy BE1 seeks a quality of design in all
new development that enhances and contributes to the area in terms of form, scale and
materials; is appropriate to the identity and context of the townscape; and would improve
the quality of the public realm and respect local character. Part Two - Saved Unitary
Development Plan Policies of the Local Plan contains policies that seek to safeguard the
appearance, character and amenities of the local street scene and surrounding area.
Policy BE13 states that development must harmonise with the existing street scene and
Policy BE19 requires that development should complement the amenity and character of
the residential area in which it is situated.

Policy DMHB 11 of the emerging Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development
Management Policies with Modifications (March 2019) advises that all development will be

Internal Consultees

Access Officer - No comments to make.

Highways - No highway related comments relevant to this application.

Conservation and Urban Design - No comments to make.

days expiring on the 17 October 2018. There was one response raising the following issues:

- We currently have unrestricted access to the back of the commercial premises with staff and
customer parking since 1990. The proposed plans will seriously restrict Carpetstyle operations
along with other traders nearby
- No mention is made in the latest proposal for tenant/owner parking facilities for no. 73.
- At no point has anybody responded too or called to discuss the issues directly with anyone directly
affected.
- A point that has been completely ignored is that planning permission was only granted for Grace
Court on the basis that the so called "storage facility" was garage/parking for the occupants of Grace
Court, which the tenants have no access to.

Ward Councillor: Requested that the application be heard at committee as he is concerned that this
application will cause extreme difficulties for 2 shops that have goods delivered in this area. He also
gathered that this building should have been demolished as it was supposedly the parking spaces
for the neighbouring Grace Court.

Officer comment: The matter of parking for residents of Grace Court is explained in the planning
history section of this report.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 57



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

required to be designed to the highest standards and incorporate principles of good design.
It should take into account aspects including the scale of the development considering the
height, mass and bulk of adjacent structures; building plot sizes and established street
patterns; building lines and streetscape rhythm and landscaping. It should also not
adversely impact on the amenity, daylight and sunlight of adjacent properties and open
space.

The proposed development would create 2 windows and 2 doors on the south elevation
replacing an existing door and a shutter, and replace a doorway with a window, a shutter
with a window and enlarge 2 existing windows on the north elevation. These are a relatively
minor alterations to the character of the building and are considered acceptable. The
scheme would improve the appearance of the building and the visual amenities of the
surrounding area. Therefore, the development complies with the aims of Policies BE13 and
BE19 of the Hillingdon Local Plan (November 2012) and Policy DMHB 11 of the emerging
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies with Modifications
(March 2019).

Policy BE24 states that the proposal should protect the privacy of the occupiers and their
neighbours. The proposed windows and doors are at ground level and face the service
yard to one side and the access road to the other. The installation of the new facade and
replacement of existing windows would not harm the residential amenity of any
neighbouring occupier, in accordance with Policies BE21, BE24 and OE1 of the Hillingdon
Local Plan (November 2012).

Not applicable to this application.

There would be no alteration to parking provision as a result of this proposal.

Not applicable to this application.

The Access Officer has not raised any objections.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

With regard to the parking for Grace Court advice was sought from the Planning
Enforcement Team who advised that given the length of time the development has been in
existence and the fact this was not addressed at the time of construction it would not be
possible for the Council to take any action on this matter now.

Page 58



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.20

7.21

7.22

Planning Obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

The concerns raised over the potential impact on the adjacent retail properties are noted.
However this proposal is for minor alterations to the fenestration of the existing building with
an established storage use. Any change of use of the building which could cause a conflict
with the operation of the shops does not form part of this proposal and cannot be
considered as part of this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

General
Members must determine planning applications having due regard to the provisions of the
development plan so far as material to the application, any local finance considerations so
far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations (including
regional and national policy and guidance). Members must also determine applications in
accordance with all relevant primary and secondary legislation.
 
Material considerations are those which are relevant to regulating the development and use
of land in the public interest. The considerations must fairly and reasonably relate to the
application concerned. 
 
Members should also ensure that their involvement in the determination of planning
applications adheres to the Members Code of Conduct as adopted by Full Council and also
the guidance contained in Probity in Planning, 2009.
 
Planning Conditions
Members may decide to grant planning consent subject to conditions. Planning consent
should not be refused where planning conditions can overcome a reason for refusal.
Planning conditions should only be imposed where Members are satisfied that imposing
the conditions are necessary, relevant to planning, relevant to the development to be
permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects. Where conditions are
imposed, the Council is required to provide full reasons for imposing those conditions.
 
Planning Obligations
Members must be satisfied that any planning obligations to be secured by way of an
agreement or undertaking pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990 are necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. The
obligations must be directly related to the development and fairly and reasonably related to
the scale and kind to the development (Regulation 122 of Community Infrastructure Levy
2010).
 
Equalities and Human Rights
Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010, requires the Council, in considering planning
applications to have due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of
opportunities and foster good relations between people who have different protected
characteristics. The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

Page 59



North Planning Committee - 22nd January 2020
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The requirement to have due regard to the above goals means that members should
consider whether persons with particular protected characteristics would be affected by a
proposal when compared to persons who do not share that protected characteristic.
Where equalities issues arise, members should weigh up the equalities impact of the
proposals against the other material considerations relating to the planning application.
Equalities impacts are not necessarily decisive, but the objective of advancing equalities
must be taken into account in weighing up the merits of an application. The weight to be
given to any equalities issues is a matter for the decision maker to determine in all of the
circumstances.

Members should also consider whether a planning decision would affect human rights, in
particular the right to a fair hearing, the right to respect for private and family life, the
protection of property and the prohibition of discrimination. Any decision must be
proportionate and achieve a fair balance between private interests and the public interest.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed alterations to the facade would have an acceptable impact on the
appearance of the building and the visual amenities of the surrounding area and is
recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Local Plan: Part One - Strategic Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Saved UDP Policies (November 2012)
Hillingdon Local Plan: Part Two - Development Management Policies with Modifications
(March 2019)
The London Plan (2016)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon
National Planning Policy Framework

Liz Arnold 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 60



MP 13.0
(PH)
Lounge
Nameste

Northwood Hills Station (LU)

House
Argyle

Rail Lodge1 to 5

Shelter

SL

21

27

47

Hawthorne Court

11

14
13

12

11
4

11
6

38 40

1
3

21

11
0

10 12

73

1 to 5

GraceCourt

Post

76

1

Clinic

70.1m

West

87

ROAD 77.1m

66
86

11
8

30

42

5
48

2

91
89

2

Ry
efi

eld
 C

ou
rt

PO
LB

27

37

65
77

53

14
 to

 20

71.6m

RYEFIELD

Works

CRESCENT

2 to 12

28

22

68.8m

JO
EL

 ST
RE

ET

TOLCARNE DRIVE

FERNDOWN

SL

4511
2

Ways

48a

25

12
6

13

(Allotment Gardens)
Poor's Field

Track

67.1m
El Sub Sta

´

January 2020

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.
Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

73 Ryefield Cresent

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:
1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

70141/APP/2019/3098
© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 63

Agenda Item 10STRICTLY NOT FOR PUBLICATION
Exempt information by virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
 of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 73

Agenda Item 11STRICTLY NOT FOR PUBLICATION
Exempt information by virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
 of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 87

Agenda Annex



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



22

Glenwood

33

17

86.6m

2

KEWFERRY DRIVE25

Downside

Claremont

81.7m

Croft Ham

12

El Sub Sta

16

Cetlas

Albuhera

Highgate

High Meadow

Glencairn Endymion

FARM ROAD

HE
DG

ES
ID

E R
OA

D

16

´

January 2020

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.
Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

7 Hedgeside Road

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:
1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

38605/APP/2019/2718
© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



3

MEZEN CLOSE

1

34

13

EER, Boro Const, GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

28

12 9

1

24

9

2

2

8

18

1

7a
9a

7

GROVE ROAD
1a

MOOR PARK ROAD

23

18

7

13
14

19

19

10

´

January 2020

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.
Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

Land to Rear of 18 Moor Park Road

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:
1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

74971/APP/2019/3169
© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Monmouth

1 to 6
15

12

13

1

6

37

1a
FF

27

35

1a

10

27

2

44

33

18

14

EL
GO

OD

23

RAVENSWOOD PARK

37

13

31

16

8

14b

14

12

48

33

40

19

34

20

RAVENSWOOD PARK

33

19

El Sub Sta

14
a

29

15

29

17

43

27a

21

AV
EN

UE

38

30

The Dormers

96.6m

38

26
Turret

28

GA
TE

HIL
L R

OA
D

49

Pool

89.0m

The

´

January 2020

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.
Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

17 Elgood Avenue 

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:
1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

9106/APP/2019/1070
© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



MP 13.0
(PH)
Lounge
Nameste

Northwood Hills Station (LU)

House
Argyle

Rail Lodge1 to 5

Shelter

SL

21

27

47

Hawthorne Court

11

14
13

12

11
4

11
6

38 40

1
3

21

11
0

10 12

73

1 to 5

GraceCourt

Post

76

1

Clinic

70.1m

West

87

ROAD 77.1m

66
86

11
8

30

42

5
48

2

91
89

2

Ry
efi

eld
 C

ou
rt

PO
LB

27

37

65
77

53

14
 to

 20

71.6m

RYEFIELD

Works

CRESCENT

2 to 12

28

22

68.8m

JO
EL

 ST
RE

ET

TOLCARNE DRIVE

FERNDOWN

SL

4511
2

Ways

48a

25

12
6

13

(Allotment Gardens)
Poor's Field

Track

67.1m
El Sub Sta

´

January 2020

Site Address:Notes:

For identification purposes only.
Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

73 Ryefield Cresent

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee: Date:

Scale:
1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Residents Services
Planning Section

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 01895 250111

70141/APP/2019/3098
© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 
100019283 Page 116


	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting
	6 7 Hedgeside Road, Northwood - 38605/APP/2019/2718
	2718 Report
	LP

	7 Land to Rear of 18 Moor Park Road, Northwood - 74971/APP/2019/3169
	3169 Report
	LP

	8 17 Elgood Avenue, Northwood Hills - 9106/APP/2019/1070
	1070 Report
	LP

	9 73 Ryefield Crescent, Northwood Hills - 70141/APP/2019/3098
	3098 Report
	LP

	10 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	11 ENFORCEMENT REPORT
	 PART I - Plans for North Planning Committee
	North Committee Cover
	2718 ST
	FS
	Location Plan
	Pre- existing & Proposed Block Plan
	Proposed Plans- Proposed Outbuilding
	Pre- existing Plan & Elevation
	LP

	3169 ST
	FS
	Location Plan
	Site Layout Plan
	Site Layout Plan & Location Plan
	Proposed Ground & First Floor Plans
	Proposed Floor Plans & Elevations
	LP

	1070 ST
	FS
	Location Plan & Site Plan & Tree Survey
	Existing Elevations
	Proposed Elevations
	Existing Ground Floor Plan
	Proposed Ground Floor Plans
	LP

	3098 ST
	FS
	Site Location Plan
	Existing Site Plan
	Proposed Site Plan
	Proposed Plan
	Existing Warehouse Building
	Existing Warehouse Building 2
	Proposed Elevations
	LP



